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Corporate Profile
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China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1123) has a long-established business
partnership with Fujifilm Japan as the sole authorised distributor of Fujifilm products in Hong Kong
and Macau since 1968. The Group has established an extensive network of importers and distributors

in these two markets.

In July 2001, the Group acquired Fotomax Holdings Limited and broadened its network from
wholesale to include retail business. Through this expansion, the Group operates Fotomax, a
leading retail chain that provides photographic processing services across Hong Kong. Fotomax
shops use Fujifilm digital laser printing technology to provide high quality photofinishing and digital
output services. Fotomax also provides a full range of imaging services include digital imaging and

professional imaging services as well as the sales of other imaging related accessories.

In Mainland China, the Group operates a joint venture company in Beijing and has two wholly-
owned enterprises in Hainan and Sichuan. In 2005, the Group established a wholly-owned subsidiary
in Beijing to further expand its wholesale and retail services network following the granting of
certificates through the Mainland and Hong Kong Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement (CEPA),

as preferred Hong Kong wholesale and retail service supplier.

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited was incorporated in Bermuda on 6 July, 1994 and
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong on 19 September, 1994. The Group is held by the public
(38.8%) and by its founder, the Sun family (61.2%) through Searich Group Limited, Fine Products

Limited and Dago Corporation.

TRRESMEEERQIF(ROASR 1123)EBEAXELRARANEBRH  B1968FUR-—ERETL
EmRERERBEMANE -RUEER - KRECEERMEATSEYREZNADBRD HERLE -

2001578 REBAREBXERERAF  $oERENERRRETERET - REXEEERARE
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Mission Statement

We have a long-term perspective and commitment
to the imaging and information business in mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau. We strive to achieve
steady growth and a prudent return on shareholders’
funds. China-Hongkong Photo is dedicated to
providing customers with quality products and
services, and to contributing to the communities in

which we do business.
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Corporate Principles

* Fostering strong internal relationships between
management and employees

* Creating an environment that will encourage
employees to be confident and competent

* Empowering our staff to boost employees’ morale

e Striving to provide quality service and distribute

diversified products to our customers’ satisfaction

¢ Commitment to effective and open communication

with our shareholders, our customers, our
colleagues and the community
* Actively seeking opportunities to help the

community
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Financial Highlights
B HE

mEeRaeEREH CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS DATA
BHE3A3IBLEFE Year ended 31 March
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

W 2 Revenue 322,618 827,204 1,250,595 1,232,828 1,395,111
BB FDER 7 (&E) Profit/(loss) before taxation 52,265 233,714 120,499 44,910 (57,363)
FiIE Tax (6,047) (14,979) 100 195 (4,329)
BRI REER A Profit/(loss) before minority

ZaF,/ (EE) interests 46,218 218,735 120,599 45,105 (61,692)
LERRER Minority interests 165 89 (103) 240 45
PR EALER, Profit/(loss) attributable

(&18) to shareholders 46,383 218,824 120,496 45,345 (61,647)
’E Dividends (104,744) (104,744) (74,485)  (128,021) (128,021)
sRER Per share data HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents
BF(F18) Earnings/(loss) 3.99 18.80 10.35 3.90 (5.30)
FHIRR B Interim dividend 1.00 3.80 2.20 1.00 -
FR AR B BR 2 Interim special dividend 2.80 - - - 1.00
BRRERE Proposed final dividend 0.90 5.20 4.20 2.00 -
BT AR B 45 B Proposed final special

’E dividend 4.30 - - 8.00 10.00
HEEEAREKEH CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET DATA
R3A31H As at 31 March

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

ME - BERRE Property, plant and equipment 41,907 50,434 98,176 116,306 144,849
REWE Investment properties 124,194 103,248 35,958 35,850 35,900
BmE Goodwill 35,878 35,878 35,878 35,878 38,075
EHFR Time deposits - - 38,785 54,579 15,594
EREBEREATYE Financial assets at fair value
TECERMEE through profit or loss 236,792 - - - -
RekBHeEEER Cash and cash equivalents 680,619 965,257 617,420 540,976 515,336
E@fﬁiﬂﬁ%/(ﬁ%) Other net current assets/
FE (liabilities) (26,018) (36,482) 117,996 190,270 329,335
BWEERABERS Total assets over current
liabilities 1,108,936 1,133,248 980,556 1,002,639 1,085,030
LHRRER Minority interests (15,922) (16,087) (16,176) (16,073) (16,313)
FREBEE Non-current liabilities (35,048) (8,363) (4,898) (2,503) (1,928)
BRRES Shareholders’ funds 1,057,966 1,108,798 959,482 984,063 1,066,789
% % % % %
EREEARLE Debt to equity ratio - - - - -
B2 BIHE Return on equity 4.38 19.74 12.56 4.61 N/A
TRE = Dividend pay-out ratio 226.63 47.89 61.84 282.05 N/A

FENEE = Current ratio 1,140.70 985.15 626.78 665.21 678.22
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Chairman’s Statement 2007/2008
FERE

The global imaging industry has undergone dramatic changes as digital technology
continues to progress and to evolve. In the course of just a decade, the world’s
embrace of imaging product designs and their use has reshaped the photo-imaging
market in a way that was previously unimaginable. Globalisation has contributed
significantly to help speeding the revolution from analogue imaging to new frontiers of

digital imaging.

The China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited (referred to as “the Group”
hereafter) has embraced this challenging era with a strategic vision guided by a
commitment to innovation. This has seen the Group embrace new market opportunities

while keeping abreast of the changing marketplace.

REHBRRNTEHESRERLY - 2REEGEHRPRAELNSC EEETEH 2
HREEEERRTNAZEIRFEERNER  ERERETEUBEEEEEGNTRX
WEHMBE - DHREBEHRNEZEERBRELEBEZZHBEANBIBLEG  THRET
BEEENER -

TRERESRMEEARLB(TEIARE D UBEBNEELRER BEBHNENL - UHE
RIFEREMET 2EM - Bt - AEBERBBH T SKE AR TEH2LOTSE
e



In the fiscal year 2007/2008, the Group continued to make strategic adjustments to its
business model in order to stay ahead of the global shift in demand for new imaging
technologies. During this period, the Group was still releasing its strategic due to the
termination of its distribution rights to Fujifilm Japan, and recorded a 61% decrease in
revenue. Consolidated revenue for the year under review amounted to HK$323 million
and the net profit attributable to shareholders was HK$46 million, a drop of 78.8%

compared with the previous fiscal year.

The Group has responded to the fiercely competitive global marketplace and has
adapted effectively. At the same time that the traditional film market has been
contracting, the Group is pleased to announce that it has recorded reasonable revenue

growth from digital imaging products.

Entering into our 40th year of operation, the Group saw exceptional growth in demand
for digital imaging products. Advancing into 2008, we envisage a promising sales
growth with the Olympic Games in Beijing and with Hong Kong continuing to play a

vital role as a bridge between China and the global marketplace.

The Group is pleased to report a satisfactory performance by our wholly-owned
subsidiary, Fotomax, which has met with success in the retail sector. In addition to

strong growth in FotoPress printing services, the Group has reported a record-breaking

figure in the total volume of digital prints, which stands at more than 62.9 million

for the year. Total online print orders alone were 2.07 million, a 35% growth when

Outdoor billboard
compared with the same period last fiscal year. EANBER

12007, 2008 N FE - AEBMBEHEBENFELHRRAZE  UHETEREEEZRER
ERPEEREEE - BN SR LFEMRERLLZEEEBIZWERD &
SENERAEEREY BEFEZAEWREABYE3.23E T LHSRREGATEE
4,6008 7T BE LBIBFEE T #78.8% °

FEBRBFHUZRRTSRBFELHEEER  XERMLEE - TESRFEMATSERN
B AEEMAEMREUBEEERNRENEESEER -

SERAAEEMEI0BEF  BMEREBEEERTRIVERIEER - BEA2008F @ K&
EEE  BELRREXGREBEEFESTEANRRT S ZANERBR  HESHET
BHEER -

AEBRARE  EEE2ENBLARMNEEZENRREELE HSEEXETEEIRR -KRT
FotoPressHIENfR IS R B@SNIE RN AEBRFREBEG6, 2008 RNV AL SFEIF HENLR
HE - ERFELFNFECHEB52078 R REEVHREERHIERI5% ©



Photographic competition
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Chairman’s Statement FE#{%

Unlike many of our competitors, the Group has a long history in the industry and is
keenly responsive to changes in the market. We have been pioneers in the imaging
market for many years and have worked to shape, rather than respond to, changing
market dynamics. Against a background of keen competition, the Group has kept
abreast of changes and marketing developments in the imaging field. We remain
strategically focused on profitable business areas while imposing tight cost controls
at the same time. In the coming year, the Group will continue to secure profit levels
through effective management of expenses, improved distribution networks and

inventory control.

As a key plank of our corporate strategy, the Group will continue to broaden its retail
programmes, placing strong emphasis on digital imaging services. An increased focus
on training programmes for staff will improve the Group’s front-line technological
capabilities. Through these initiatives, we expect to see sustainable business growth in
the future.

As a successful corporation that has remained strong for four decades, the Group
believes that a strong commitment to our strategic vision is essential. | am confident
that with a shared commitment from staff at all levels, success will result. | envisage
that the Group will continue to prosper and grow with this philosophy firmly embedded
in our business goals.

Last but not least, on behalf of the management and board of directors, | would like
to thank the Group’s business partners, stakeholders and staff for their support during
the past year. To reward shareholder's continuing support to the Group, the Board is

pleased to recommend a payment of high dividend in view of our strong balance sheet.

AEEEXERNCHELAERL  HmSR(RELARE  BEEZURFUFEMRTE - &F
ZER-BERFEHENLE  THERSIETSEL MRS ILELRE  ERF
BZNBERT  AEE-EEMEEHTENEHRTERE  SEETRK LDEIRERNT
Bl BRNTETRERAFERER - NRF  FEESEFAEBHRINENEE X
EDHPBRFEEERMREBRTIKFE -

EREENARRBREIRZEYA2— ARESHBELRRAEZESS  FHBRRBBZER
o ARBEMARRIMENSTEBRABTRIAEMESRE - BRELEREK  £EE
HAREBEITHEER -

AEERE  EEENTFEREURB-FIRDEEMESKELITE  2BREEHEKER
MEE - EEREEINRBBIT » RARGETERRY - FARY - AEEEZUE
FEBRAGEEBEENELTE  BUHEEIRE -

BEMEREEE  FABAREERERESS  ROUBHEBENEBRH RERELB
E-FHRTHXE AEHRRYLEENEAXRE  UREBAEERBRENEESERE
N EEEMARIRBEAERE -

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis

Chairman
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Operations Review

FEI5OER

OVERVIEW

The imaging industry is a front-end business that is constantly facing new challenges
from both a global and a regional perspective. From a macro point of view, we are
facing competition and challenges, not only in relation to products, but also from the
overall changing social and behavioural patterns of our customers. Therefore, it is very
important not only take into account market trends in the region, but also to keep

abreast of the spending pattern of consumers in relation to imaging products.

It is commonly acknowledged that the imaging and new media business sector is

fiercely competitive, leading to a trade environment which has seen many operators
fold during the past few years. A key part of our business strategy has been to make
several adjustments in line with new distribution opportunities in order to sustain the

profit margins of the imaging business.

Another strategy is to keep pace with consumer demand for diversified digital products.
The Group’s Fotomax network continued to upgrade its retail service by developing
new brands and value-added schemes to its product lines. The success of Fun2Print,
FotoPress and online services are but a few of these innovations which demonstrate our

commitment to innovation.

REVENUE AND PROFIT

In the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group’s total revenue was HK$323 million,
a drop of 61% compared with 2007. The net profit attributable to shareholders was
HK$46 million, a 78.8% decrease over the previous year. Earnings per share were

HK3.99 cents.

]

FEBER-EARER  ATEHEHREZEREANGHRE -REZBEAETS £EF
EEUEMAENRERRE  THHEFEMIRTARA T HER LESNRE - B
I EERTEIBEATSBE)  BUEFEXGERFTENEEEXTERER -

BIAA  ZERGFHEBEBRRFHI EREBRET BERFESULEEHEX -
ETEAMIHEARNZRARDSEEXEBRBNERE R USEEEBNERREUE
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EENS—XKRABRMEFHSTBBEMNER - AEENREZAFEEZELEE
ESHBRTREREETE  RAREARLZERS - [RBED] - FotoPressR# F IRBF IS
MR ERSETLERHNN T  HXHRREEHAIH RS -

aRaF
EEEZ2008F3A31HLEFENRZLEABMEI.23E T » B2007F T #61% ° A 7
BIEZEABGATEBE4,600BT  BEEFETH78.8% c FRENBEBUE3 901l ©



MERCHANDISING

Digital cameras remain the Group’s strongest business product due to the sophistication
in camera design, electronic functioning and superior image quality. Effective trade
promotions in collaboration with leading chain stores in the Hong Kong retail

market, such as product exposure in television advertising campaigns, and joint sales

promotions with credit cards were also undertaken.

The Group is pleased to report that the sales of digital cameras was up by 17.4% in the

year under review.

The two most popular digital camera models during the year were the FinePix F50fd
and the FinePix Z10fd. Equipped with the popular “face detection” technology which
optimises focus and exposure, the FinePix F50fd easily became the year’s market

winner. The superior functions of these products included ultra high sensitivity, quick

shooting response features and dual memory cards (xD and SD) capabilities.

In addition, two new digital cameras, the S5800fd and the S8000fd, were launched
before Summer, 2007. These models, equipped with 10x and 18x long zoom lenses

respectively, proved to be very popular among tourists.

Among professional users, the digital SLR camera FinePix S5Pro proved to be extremely

popular.

ERNE

ERBISHEBNBERN  ESTIEREBEZS  CHEBNALTEENBRREKER - K
EETHZZERZETSIEEHEETAENNBSERED - (NENERBELNER
BE) STHEERAFETHSHEEE -

REBRARS  REBEFERN - BEBAKNEEHELA17.4% -

FR - RZEONMAREERKASE BFinePix F50fd&FinePix Z10fd ° FinePix F50fdMi
ESENNEIER M EEENBANKRREELEE  BERAARFETSEE - W
NERBEERRALE BERMAREREF (xDRSD) HAEH SHMINEE o

BHN » R2007FEEZ AT > EEHEE MR E H HIEH#S5800fd K% S8000fd ° 5% W [ HL 5% 2 Bl
BEE10ERISERELEE  FEZREEM -

ZABEXHRAE » FinePix S5Prof §5 Ix Y BB AE M BISR = h I8k -
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Professional photographers

were invited to share the
experience with the amateurs
EEBEREEREHENZ
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Operations Review %750l

Reflecting the worldwide trend of lessening interest in analogue products, the total
sales of film continued to fall, recording a decrease of 34.5% compared with the
previous fiscal year. Despite this, the Group continued to enjoy strong growth of 63.3%

in instant products.

On the operational level, the Group will strive to expand the market for innovative and
customer-friendly products and services. Imaging software, the promotional network
and Fuji Digital Imaging (FDI) networks will be upgraded, while specialist training and
workshops will target frontline staff to upgrade their technological and photofinishing

expertise.

HEFERNERBETHRD2REBE  FMNAHEEEETRE L BAVYBRFEET K
34.5% ° BEWL c AEENNENEERIZEE63.3%NEHIER -

PREEEMS ARESBIRARAFNESEANERRRYE - EEBEZEEMS  #
EEERETHEHCOPERBEDVAEAR - STAMRE TREZEZIRTHY » &
RBFAAFIRBHR R AR REN 5 H A E AR -
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Operations Review %750l

PHOTOFINISHING AND TECHNICAL SERVICES
In the past fiscal year, as a measure of cost re-adjustments, the Group reduced the
number of Fotomax shops from 91 to 87, while increasing the number of kiosks from

180 units to 220 units.

Total revenue amounted to HK$129 million, which was a decrease of 3.7% as compared
with the same period last year. However, the Group is pleased to report that total

sales from the FotoPress printing service increased by 75% as compared with the same
period last year. As well, total sales for Fun2Print paper printing products also increased

by 47% as compared with same period.

FRED R B o PR 75
RBENTREE BAGKE  XEEBREES EHEBOIBERES7H - B —8B
o [HiE I HEHI180RIEE 22048 °

EFRRNEEBEI2B L REFAHRED3.7% A AEERAL2H K H
FotoPressSTEN IR 3§ 2 B SR KA FE R H L F75% o Bboh » [RBED JFEA 4L P EN = S (9 48 8
EETREFEBEMET% ©



The market trend has continued to embrace digital printing products over film which
has seen Fotomax meet the challenge by shifting its emphasis to digital sales. The
Group expects to see continued growth of sales in digital printing over the next year,

reflecting the overall market transition from film to digital printing.

The Digital Kiosks have been welcomed by consumers who find them convenient to
use, and print orders received from the kiosks have become the preferred method of
photographic printing. The total number of prints from digital files was 62.9 million, up

2.2% as compared with the same period last year.

The Group is committed to meeting and responding to rapidly changing new media
technology. Three years ago, Fotomax launched the “Octopus Rewards Programme” to

facilitate payment by the widely-accepted Octopus Card System. We also upgraded the

functionality and usability of our online service with new features on the “Fotomax.com”
website. In addition to the one-stop platform and gift items offered previously, further AW x RS-

personalised imaging features have been introduced such as the Fotobook, calendar and . .
Trade promotions in

greeting card functions. Increased tailor-made features have been incorporated into the collaboration with leading

online service scheme and the Fotobook ordering service has been extended from 11 chain stores in Hong Kong
retail market
FEEEATETENERE
HIEETBRNBSERTED

selected shops to all of the 87 stores in the network, thereby doubling the number of

orders.

EMRBIDHSEBENRBREMDNBBERNERNBE  MREXTEERSHEBLEHB
HE UCEEERE - ASEARHBEPONEERFLEENESER  RRHERBTSH
FEMORENBEE IS PEIMN KT [@ ©

85 IBESZR  RIEEERL  SBEIBE BEFDRBERABEZTOETEEN
HENERAR - REBERBHNEFBBEERG, 2908 % - BWEAFRBIEM2.2% °

REBHEENR  LWERREAHEENRNSEES - ZFAREXELINEBAAE]
8 UREREZEMANNEBFASGARER - RETRAF LRBO N LA
» 7l Fotomax.com JA ¥ E AR - BT REN - FaREHERAINEN - 5
EFEZEMECHBIRY - flMFotobook * AEREFINEE - HERBFTABETESZESH
EIRISHITNEE - MFotobookr] BARB M 1 I BHFEMEEMERNBALZIS7TEMIE » <5
BEgSEE -
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Operations Review %750l

In the year under review, the total number of online prints was 2.07 million, recording
growth of 35% when compared with same period of last year. As increasing numbers
of customers adopt the online platform, the Group is very optimistic that this trend will

continue in the coming years.

The Group intends to upgrade its customer service level by participating in the Service

Quality Management Certification Scheme organised by the HKQAA.

Looking ahead to 2009, the Group aims to further strengthen Fotomax in order to
make it the preferred, leading store for total imaging solutions in terms of convenience,

quality, customer service and versatility across Hong Kong.

BRAND MANAGEMENT

The Group’s branding management team has adopted a number of integrated strategies
aimed at boosting awareness of the FujiFilm Brand and reinforcing Fotomax’s customer
loyalty. In the year under review, much was accomplished through the Group’s strategic
promotional campaigns and activities. New popular and fashionable concepts were
introduced into the Group’s public relations, advertising and promotional activities,

targeting different customer segments.

REEFR  BEAFNABER2078R > BEFRBLA3% HREZEERARLYF
B AEBAFELL—BERRRYAEEITE -

FEEGBAB2ETERERERIWNRBREEERRHE  BATFREAF -

RE2000FE  AEB#RBEERE-PINBREEINER  FEAHZEEIBANS
FUEGHBABTERRBE  YEESE BE FRPFRERBBEZEMESFEYERHSH
He e

o g TR

ARAZFHELEMBENRAN  RECREXEENEHE  FAEENREEEEE
METTZEFELER - REBEFR - 2EENKRIERTBREDME T —ERE - &
EENAHBEGR EEREBTBSIATHIMATHENES  LERUERREFE -



In the fall of 2007, a major campaign was launched to promote the FinePix Z10fd,
coupled with a photographic competition which was jointly undertaken with AMY
Magazine. Recognition of our branding efforts was attained during the year under
review when Fujifilm was recognised as a favourite brand in the “Touch Brands” election
in 2007 organised by East Touch Magazine, a result determined by the magazine’s

readers.

A new digital camera model, the Z100fd, was launched during the 2007 Christmas
season, featuring popular Japanese model Ms Yuri Ebihara who was the star of the
promotional launch event. This activity was supported by a major media campaign

targeting trendy and fashion-conscious young consumers.

To build the brand in the virtual world, a new Chinese website interface was launched in
November, 2007. A lucky draw promotion scheme was undertaken to draw users to the

website.

The imaging business relies heavily on attractive and eye-catching images. The Group

has therefore worked hard to keep the brand name highly visible in prominent locations

across the city in order to draw public attention to our digital imaging products.
Eye-catching advertisements were placed using various formats including print MTR advertisement

advertisements, outdoor billboards and MTR panels. BEEE

A2007FEFKZE » EE B EFinePix Z10fdE T —HBAEESE) > ZAFE(AMY)YHFETF
EPR—EBETLE - ROBEFER 0 5L IEMRECERTouch)HEis E P HI2007 %[ Touch Brands |
BEMEZREZEERATRIEE  RMEEBRIYREEEKRNEHEIRRE -

A2007F EFEEMTHEAEHEMNEHEBEAEEEEZI00fd BEEARAAREBESRBELR
BNMEAREA ERAARREETHNED - 2IXEEHSE — 18 LUB R B4 # FEE
BEAHSNEIEHREETHAMLE -

ATEERERERMME R > EER2007F 11 AR CHUENE > LEBHRT —REE
HEREEES - USIBEKAFNER -

FEEBHERMBRSIMERAEENZER - BRRY  FAEES IERREEBEZFLAT
ZEBHEUEBZABHAR  SEENBBYEGERESARIR - KETUFTRERER
SREBNSINES  BEORES  PHEERRBEEEESS -
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Operations Review %750l

Fotomax plays a major role in engaging with customers and the retail stores are key
touchpoints for building and retaining customer loyalty, reinforcing Fotomax’ position
as a leader in the photofinishing retail business. The Group has worked to position
Fotomax as a caring and sensitive photographic services provider, recognising the key

role this service plays in capturing and recording customers’ most memorable moments.

In the year under review, the Group celebrated the 25th Anniversary of Fotomax

and capitalised on this milestone to conduct a series of promotional activities which
included television commercials, gift albums, redemption coupons and an anniversary
advertorial in East Week Magazine’s HKSAR 10th Anniversary Special Edition which had
a print run of 336,000.

A thematic promotion was also launched to boost Fun2Print sales, including Mother’s
Day Promotions and Christmas card and calendar promotions. New gift items were also
added to the product line, including multiple-purpose bags, A3 posters and crystal glass
key chains. In view of the success of the FotoBook orders, the Group aims to further

expand these promotional activities.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group has been operating for 40 years and remains as staunchly committed to the
philosophy of giving back to the community as we did when we were first founded. The
Group has been actively involved in a number of activities focusing on environmental
protection and youth education. During the year, the Group sponsored the Community
Chest’s “Greening for the Chest” programme, in line with our environmental protection

principles.

Our involvement in sports continues to be a major focus. In the year under review, the
Group continued its sponsorship of the “Fujifilm Mini-Squash Scheme” and “Fujifilm Easy
Mini-Squash School Scheme” organised by Hong Kong Squash. These schemes aim to

promote a healthy lifestyle and a positive attitude among young people.

In fact, the scale of these schemes has grown significantly over the years with more
than 150 training courses for students, teachers and young people held during the
review period. In addition, inter-school and public competitions were held and more

than 900 players took part.
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sport activities
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Frontline staff training
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STAFF DEVELOPMENT

As technology continues to progress and the speed of Hong Kong’s internet traffic
becomes even faster, the Group will remain committed to a culture of continual
innovation and to embrace the opportunities offered by new technologies. Based on
this philosophy, the Group is keenly aware of the importance on human resources

development and on the need to invest in the learning and development of our people.

In the year under review, training courses at various levels were offered to all staff
across all grades, providing a wide range of skills development opportunities. As the
Group’s business is highly dependent on continual technological refinement, it is very
important that our frontline staff are continually trained on the use of new hardware and
software applications. We recognise that new software courses are therefore essential

and these have been conducted on a regular basis.

Recognising the rapidly changing consumer marketplace, the Group has also invested
in upgrading the capabilities of its marketing team. Regular training in market and
customer analysis, and promotional strategies has been undertaken. As well, staff have
also taken part in skills development programmes in software applications, product

knowledge and leadership.
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OUTLOOK

Hong Kong’s economic outlook remained positive during the year under review as we
observed positive development and growth in Mainland China throughout the year. The
region continues to witness a growing number of tourists from Mainland China which is

a very encouraging sign for the photographic imaging business.

The 2008 Olympic Games in Beijing will attract worldwide attention in the next fiscal
year and there is increasing global interest in Mainland China’s economic success story.
In the coming year, the Group expects to see significant growth in the tourist industry
and remains optimistic about continued business prospects. The Group will continue

to leverage the unique opportunities offered by the boom in sports and international

tourism in the coming year.

The Group is also keenly focused on the behaviour of younger consumers who embrace
new media and digital products. The Group will closely monitor advances in technology
and remains committed to keeping abreast of popular lifestyle applications of new

media products.

Longer term, the Group is investigating sound investment opportunities in different
business areas and we will continue to explore new imaging products and services to

foster the expansion of our business.
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New Digital Experience in Landscape Photography

Networking Precious Memories Between Mainland and Hong Kong
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Executive Directors’ Information

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis
Chairman
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Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley
Executive Director

BRELLELE  BITES

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis, BBS, JP, aged 57, is the Chairman of China-
Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited, responsible for the
overall management and strategic business development of the
Group. He joined the management team of the Group in 1976 and

has 32 years’ experience in the photographic products industry.

Dr Sun is the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Photo Marketing
Association and also the Life Honorary Advisor of the Photographic

Society of Hong Kong. He is the Vice Patron of the Community Chest
of Hong Kong. He is also a Council Member and the Chairman of the

Community Relations Committee of the City University of Hong Kong.

Dr Sun is the Deputy Chairman of The Hong Kong Management
Association. He is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Dah
Sing Financial Holdings Limited, i-cable Communications Limited and
Hanison Construction Holdings Limited. He was awarded the Bronze

Bauhinia Star in 1999 and appointed Justice of the Peace (JP) in 2002.

Dr Sun holds a Bachelor’s degree in Pharmacy from the University
of Oklahoma, USA and a Doctorate degree in Philosophy in Business
Administration from Southern California University for Professional
Studies. He is the son of former Honorary Chairman and founder of

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited, Mr Sun Chieh Yeh.



Ms Ng Yuk Wah Eileen
Executive Director

REELZLT > HTES

RiELEE RF305 ATEBERERIME
BERRXBDZHTESE - HEMN2005F A
FEE BRAEEEESEEZBREMSEERER
HEHE VYEEHEAEBIBERBRER
B o EMAREER BREDBRBEAEL
REXESAEMER  EEXBREMITSHE
EEH BREAIEREREAZSEZLT 24
RIMEBRBEIZM BREREREAQXIDERFEHRK
fRiELtzF

REEXT  BF545 0 AP BBRESRMEER
BRARZHTESE - RER1978F2AMA
TEE TREENHBERITHRFIFAREEE
KE o  RREEFEEMESOFRNWTHAE -
HEB-—RETERANER BERALEH
W BBRBMEEEMVNBESMIER
ZEH -

BEREEE RFsom RPERESRME
EBERARZHITES - B 1978F M AH
BRESEE UERMESRMITEBEREBR29
FHER FIREEEEEENEXERE -
PBRFEMEKREHREE A University of
Regina R 2 N B L2 - thRAKEEFEH
KBELTHNE o

Mr Tang Kwok Tong Simon
Executive Director

HERLE  BTES

Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley, aged 30, is an Executive Director of
China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited. He joined the
Group in 2005 and is currently responsible for the supervision of the
overall marketing and sales areas as well as the strategic business
development of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Sun has
worked in Fuji Photo Film Co. Ltd, both in Japan and the United States
of America, where he conducted marketing work for their imaging
business. Mr Sun holds a Bachelor of Science degree and a Master

of Business Administration degree from Cornell University, Ithaca,
New York, USA. Mr Sun is the son of Dr Sun Tai Lun, Chairman of the
Company.

Ms Ng Yuk Wah Eileen, aged 54, is an Executive Director of China-
Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited. Ms Ng joined the
Group in February 1978. She has extensive finance and administrative
experience with the Group, having helped it to grow from a local

Fuji products trading company in Hong Kong in 1980s to a leading
photographic wholesale and retail distributor in Mainland China,

Hong Kong and Macau.

Mr Tang Kwok Tong Simon, aged 56, is an Executive Director of
China-Hongkong Photo Products Holding Limited. He joined the
Group in 1978 and has over 29 years’ experience in the photographic
products industry. He is responsible for the supervision of the
Corporate Resources Division of the Group. Mr Tang holds a Bachelor
of Arts degree from the University of Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada.

He is the brother-in-law of Dr Sun Tai Lun.
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Independent Non-executive Directors’ Information
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Au Man Chung Malcolm, aged 59. Mr Au holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Chemical Engineering and a Master of Science
degree in Food Science both from the University of Wisconsin, USA
and a Master of Business Administration degree from the University
of Toronto, Canada. Mr Au also sits on the boards of Convenience
Retail Asia Ltd. in HK and Eu Yang Sang Company. Mr Au has over

29 years’ experience in management.

Mr Li Ka Fai David, aged 53, is currently the deputy managing
partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Company, a part-time instructor of
School of Continuing and Professional Studies, The Chinese University
of Hong Kong and appointed member of Advisory Board on
Accountancy Lingnan University. He is also a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Association

of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK as well as The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries & Administrators, UK and an associate member
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales. He

is an independent director of China Vanke Company Limited, an
independent non-executive director of Cosmopolitan International
Holdings Limited, China Merchants Holdings (International) Company
Limited and CATIC International Holdings Limited. He was also an
independent non-executive director of Nubrands Group Holdings
Limited (formerly known as “Wanji Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited”)
in 2002-2005.

Mr Liu Hui Allan, aged 51, is currently Managing Partner of ARC
Capital Partners Ltd., a private equity manager with approximately
US$ 580 million under management, focused on investing in
consumer and retail companies in China and the rest of Asia.
Previously, Mr. Liu was the president and board member of The China
Retail Fund LDC, an international direct investment fund sponsored by
American International Group (“AlG”) in cooperation with the former
Ministry of Internal Trade (“MOIT”) of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”). The fund invested in retail and retail related distribution
business in the PRC with proven international retailers and distribution
companies. Mr. Liu has had over 24 years of experience in foreign
direct investments in China, especially in the consumer and retail

sectors, both in PRC government and private sector capacities.

Dr Wong Chi Yun Allan, SBS, MBE, ]P, aged 57, is the Chairman

and Group Chief Executive Officer of VTech Holdings Limited, co-
founded the Group in 1976. Dr Wong holds a Bachelor of Science
degree in Electrical Engineering from the University of Hong Kong,

a Master of Science degree in Electrical and Computer Engineering
from the University of Wisconsin and an honorary degree of Doctor
of Technology from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Dr Wong
is an ex-officio member of the Steering Committee on Innovation and
Technology. He is also a council member of the University of Hong
Kong, an independent non-executive director of the Bank of East Asia
Limited and Li & Fung Limited.
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in
the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2008.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance with a view to safeguarding the interests of
shareholders and enhancing corporate value.

The Company has complied with the major code provisions as set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practice (“CG Code”)
throughout the year ended 31 March 2008 save for certain deviations
from the code provisions in respect of the separation of the role of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, the appointment of the non-
executive directors and dealings in the Company’s securities by the
relevant employees, details of which will be explained below.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of the CG
Code. The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarized as follows:

A. THE BOARD
(1) Responsibilities
The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Company’s business, strategic
decisions and performance. The Board has delegated to the
senior management the authority and responsibilities for the
day-to-day management and operations of the Company.

(2

-

Delegation of Management Functions

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including the approval and monitoring of

all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management systems, material transactions
(in particular those may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the
company secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. Each director is normally able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the senior management.
The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
abovementioned officers.
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(3) EETHM (3) Board Composition
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The Board currently comprises 8 members, consisting of
4 executive directors and 4 independent non-executive
directors.:

Executive directors:

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis,
Chairman/Chief Executive Officer & Member of
Remuneration Committee

Ms Ng Yuk Wah Eileen

Mr Tang Kwok Tong Simon

Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley
Independent non-executive directors:

Mr Au Man Chung Malcolm,
Chairman of Remuneration Committee &
Member of Audit Committee

Mr Li Ka Fai David,
Chairman of Audit Committee

Dr Wong Chi Yun Allan,
Member of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee

Mr Liu Hui Allan,
Member of Audit Committee

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant
to the Listing Rules from time to time. The independent non-
executive directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The relationships among the members of the Board are
disclosed under “Executive Directors’ Information” and
“Independent non-executive directors’ information” on page
22 to page 24.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation

from each independent non-executive director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all independent non-executive
directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

All directors, including independent non-executive directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board

for its efficient and effective functioning. Independent non-
executive directors have been invited to serve on the audit
and remuneration committees of the Company.
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(4) Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

(5

-

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s
Bye-laws. Though the Company has not set up a
nomination committee, the Board as a whole is responsible
for reviewing the Board composition, monitoring the
appointment and succession planning of directors and
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors of
the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and any new director appointed

to fill a causal vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment.

The independent non-executive directors are not appointed
for specific terms, but are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election by the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Board reviewed its own structure, size and composition
regularly to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills
and experience appropriate to the requirements of the
business of the Company.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry
out the selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity

and time commitments of the proposed candidates, the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations. An external recruitment agency may be
engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process
when necessary.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr Tang Kwok
Tong Simon, Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley and Mr Au Man
Chung Malcolm shall retire by rotation and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the next forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the directors
standing for re-election at the next forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

The Company’s circular dated 11 July 2008 contains detailed
information of the directors standing for re-election.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed director receives comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

Continuing briefing and professional development for
directors will be arranged whenever necessary.
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(6) EETEE (6) Board Meetings

EFETARERESBHEE Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

B £2008F3A31HLLFE B # During the year ended 31 March 2008, four regular Board

ﬁ@ AEREEGEE VASEH meetings were held at approximately quarterly intervals
TR BB RAUER B R EB R for reviewing and approving the financial and operating

Iﬁ, C WEERAERA T EERER performance, and considering and approving the overall

BUE o strategies and policies of the Company.

B Z2008F3A31ALFE &= The attendance record of each director at the Board

RESEERCHELERINOT : meetings during the year ended 31 March 2008 is set out

below:

Name of Directors Attendance/Number of Meetings

EENR HE® FRBTRY

BA Sun Tai Lun Dennis 4/4

REHE Ng Yuk Wah Eileen 4/4

BEIR Tang Kwok Tong Simon 4/4

EESEEIN Sun Tao Hung Stanley 4/4

B Au Man Chung Malcolm 4/4

ZERE Li Ka Fai David 4/4

EFm Wong Chi Yun Allan 2/4

TR By (WD Chiang Yun Rachel (ete D 0/4

s Liu Hui Allan 3/4

MizE1 : 7A200768 H20H EHE Note 1: Resigned on 20 August 2007

BEEHRRET Practices and Conduct of Meetings

BEE-RUSBENEBRREAS Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting

ZERERIR - are normally made available to directors in advance.

ERESEERBANERIHYD Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors

MMBEOERESTREE HHhESE at least fourteen days before the meetings. For other Board

RZESERA—REBELEER and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally

e given.

BEEENHERMEREZEETSE Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and

ERBREEESTRNEETER reliable information are sent to all directors at least three

AIBRPZHA2BESHL  USE days before each Board meeting or committee meeting

EBARDBNBRFTHERIBARR - to keep the directors apprised of the latest developments

WHRREEELHANBERE HREFE and financial position of the Company and to enable them

W ESFREESTIUENELE to make informed decisions. The Board and each director

BEEREERE - also have separate and independent access to the senior

management whenever necessary.

MR SERERAAMELE The Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer and
BEREZESE UNEEERLE Company Secretary attend the regular Board meetings and
HWEESRZESSE  URER when necessary, other Board and committee meetings to
BRE - BEREHEBE TFEEE advise on business developments, financial and accounting
CEEBRAAREMEEEHBEHEL matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and
B o other major aspects of the Company.
A 7%3,@\, REMEESEEER The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of
ZESERCERLE FRIHE all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes
?ﬂ*n BMEREEEE —BREEEH are normally circulated to directors for comment within a
AR TES MERKATHESE reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is

B e open for directors’ inspection.
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According to current Board practice, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interests for a
substantial shareholder or a director, will be considered and
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
The Company’s Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring
directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such
directors or any of their associates have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis is the Chairman/Chief Executive Officer

of the Company. The Board believes that vesting the roles of
both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person
provides the Company with strong and consistent leadership and
allows for effective and efficient planning and implementation of
business decisions and strategies.

The Board considers that the current structure of vesting the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person
will not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the senior management of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 2 committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company'’s affairs. All Board committees
of the Company are established with defined written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are
available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committees are
independent non-executive directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out under
“Corporate Information”.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

(1) Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises three members
and the majority of them are independent non-executive
directors.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations on and approving

the remuneration policy and structure and remuneration
packages of the executive directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure
that no director or any of his/her associates will participate
in deciding his/her own remuneration, which remuneration
will be determined by reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.
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The Remuneration Committee normally meets in mid August
for reviewing the remuneration policy and structure and
determination of the annual remuneration packages of

the executive directors and the senior management and
other related matters. The Human Resources Department

is responsible for collection and administration of the
human resources data and making recommendations

to the remuneration committee for consideration. The
Remuneration Committee will consult the Chairman and/or
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company about these
recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year
ended 31 March 2008 and reviewed the remuneration policy
and structure of the Company and remuneration packages

of the executive directors and the senior management for
the year under review. The attendance records are set out

below:
Name of Directors Attendance/Number of Meetings
EENR HEE SHREBTRE
BAfMm Sun Tai Lun Dennis 1/1
EBXH Au Man Chung Malcolm 1/1
BFR Wong Chi Yun Allan 1/1
ERERY (2) Audit Committee
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The Audit Committee comprises four independent non-
executive directors including one independent non-executive
director who possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. None of the members of the Audit Committee is a
former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the
following:

(a) To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
qualified accountant, compliance officer (if any), internal
auditor or external auditors before submission to the
Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors
by reference to the work performed by the auditors,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors.

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial controls system, and internal
control system and associated procedures.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2008 to review the financial results and
reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures, the
report from the management on the Company’s internal
control and risk management review and process, and the
re-appointment of the external auditors. The attendance
records are set out below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

EEna HEE FRBTRE
EBXH Au Man Chung Malcolm 2/2
TRE Li Ka Fai David 2/2
YR Wong Chi Yun Allan 1/2
e Liu Hui Allan 2/2
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There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Audit Committee has the same view with the Board
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 March
2008 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
director’s dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Own Code”)
on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the
directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Own
Code and the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2008.

Code Provision A.5.4 stipulates that the Board should establish
written guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model
Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for relevant
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Company in respect of their
dealings in the securities of the Company.

The Company has not established Employees Written Guidelines
for securities transactions by employees as procedures are in
place to ensure that only the executive directors are likely to be
in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of the
Company and their dealings in the securities of the Company are
already governed by the Own Code.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2008.
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The management has provided such explanation and information
to the Board as necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the financial information and position of
the Company put to the Board for approval.

EXTERNAL AUDITOS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
The statement of the external auditors of the Company about

their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages 43 and 44.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company
in respect of audit services for the year ended 31 March 2008
amounted to HK$1,100,000.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2008. The review has covered the financial, operational,
compliance and risk management aspects of the Group.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee, or in their absence, other
members of the respective committees, and where applicable,
the independent Board committee, are available to answer
questions at the shareholders’ meetings.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.
Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and
timely manner. Investors may write directly to the Company

at its principal place of business in Hong Kong or via email to
enquiry@chinahkphoto.com.hk for any inquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at http://www.chinahkphoto.com.hk/ where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are posted.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors.

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meetings are contained in the
Company’s Bye-laws. Details of such rights to demand a poll and
the poll procedures are included in all circulars to shareholders
and will be explained during the proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be published in newspapers and posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and of the Company on the
business day following the shareholders’ meeting at which voting
is taken on a poll.
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Running a business poses challenges and risks at the same time. The
Group’s core business strategies put in place measures which address
these issues and adopt a responsive approach to avoid adverse

& impacts on our business performance.

a. RESHERFIRN a. Controlling the increased cost of sales
HABEHEFLAEEESRKETAAR The Group is experiencing a continuous rise in the cost
(XBEE EENEHFEFEFR of sales as a result of slow-moving inventories despite a
MISHE A AR F54E LR RE o RIEHISH significant business relocation exercise during the past few
ERE SECEFTZEEFHE years. To keep this under control, several accounting policies
REHGHELFR - AEEFEBBT and cross-checking schemes have been put into place. We
HEFEREFBERILEE  REMH hope that by balancing high-margin and low-margin products,
BFZRNBRBER  UESREL and by offering more diversified modes of services, we can
EEEZE - minimise this risk factor.

b. HAEERSOER b. Measures against price competition
REBEHNBERACRAEEM SN It is clear that intense competition is now a feature of the
oOMEBBERENERNESZY imaging market. This is coupled with the popularity and
B SHMEEBENEKR AEEFEH increased functionality of mobile phones which creates an
REBEFNEARESEECELER additional pressure. We anticipate that the competition posed
REHER FCIBNBFTEEEY by mobile phone technology which is likely to incorporate
SYISEEROPENRIEEE - additional imaging and movie intelligence over time will

directly affect digital camera and photo printing services.
EmBE BTEENTE - TRAH Turning to products, the fall in retail prices and the hidden
REBHEESIBNATRERE MEER costs behind unlimited free repairs as well as the shortened
EEGRE U RN ERERY product life cycles are all potential risks that have the capacity
. to adversely affect profit.
REMERF N EECERHEER To increase its competitiveness, the Group has adopted a
ENEEER BRERSEBENH simple and straight-forward management structure that will
WSS T IG5 BRI 3 o help it keep abreast of the still-evolving digital imaging

market.
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The Board is responsible for the effective implementation and
development of the Group’s internal control system to ensure
the accomplishment of the corporate goals, reliability of the
financial statements, smooth running of the operations as well
as the risk management. The Group adopts the standards and
control frameworks outlined by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in establishing control systems
and the best practice in our group.

The Board has conducted regular review of the Group’s
internal control system. For the year ended 31 March 2008,
the Board has reviewed and is satisfied with the effectiveness
of the Group’s current internal control system in place.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 March 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries comprise the marketing and
distribution of photographic developing, processing and printing
products, the operations of retail photographic developing and
processing shops and the provision of technical services for
photographic developing and processing products. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The financial position of the Group remained sound and healthy
during the period under review. As at 31 March 2008, the Group’s
cash and bank balances were approximately HK$681 million with a
zero gearing ratio. Trade receivables of HK$13 million were recorded
for the year, while inventory was HK$27 million.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group had 371 employees (2007: 365), remunerated largely
based on industry practice, including provident funds, insurance

and medical benefits. The Group also adopted a discretionary bonus
programme determined annually based upon the performance of the
Group and the employees.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2008 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group as at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 45 to 106.

An interim dividend of HK1 cent per ordinary share (2007: HK3.8
cents per ordinary share) and an interim special dividend of HK2.8
cents per ordinary share (2007: Nil) were paid on 30 January 2008.
The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HKO.9
cent per ordinary share (2007: HK5.2 cents per ordinary share) and

a special final dividend of HK4.3 cents per ordinary share (2007: Nil)
in respect of the year to shareholders on the register of members

on 15 August 2008. This recommendation has been incorporated in
the financial statements as an allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the balance sheet.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the audited financial statements, is set out below. This summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Year ended 31 March
BZ3A31HILEE

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
E4 RESULTS HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
& Revenue 322,618 827,204 1,250,595 1,232,828 1,395,111
KARREREAELZ Profit/(loss) for the year
FERF(F8) attributable to equity
holders of the Company 46,383 218,824 120,496 45,345 (61,647)




As at 31 March

M3H31H

EE 88K ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
DEBRRER MINORITY INTERESTS HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEE Total assets 1,194,589 1,238,177 1,120,163 1,132,014 1,231,110
FEN=F Total liabilities (120,701) (113,292) (144,505) (131,878) (148,008)
EEFE Net assets 1,073,888 1,124,885 975,658 1,000,136 1,083,102
DERRER Minority interests (15,922) (16,087) (16,176)  (16,073)  (16,313)
1,057,966 1,108,798 959,482 984,063 1,066,789
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the financial statements,
respectively. Further details of the Group’s investment properties are
set out on pages 107 to 108.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the year. Details of the Company’s share
capital and share options during the year are set out in notes 28 and
29 to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 30(b) to the financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2008, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to
HK$254,232,000, of which approximately HK$10,474,000 and
HK$50,045,000 have been proposed as a final dividend and a

final special dividend, respectively, for the year. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account and capital redemption reserve
account of HK$478,773,000 and HK$1,619,000, respectively, may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$375,400.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
and the largest customer accounted for 13.16% and 3.49% of the
Group’s total sales for the year, respectively. Purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers and the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 84.17% and 77.95% of the Group’s total purchases for
the year, respectively.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis (Chairman)
Ms Ng Yuk Wah Eileen

Mr Tang Kwok Tong Simon

Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr Au Man Chung Malcolm

Mr Li Ka Fai David

Mr Liu Hui Allan

Dr Wong Chi Yun Allan

Ms Chiang Yun Rachel (resigned on 20 August 2007)

In accordance with bye-law 110 of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr Au
Man Chung Malcolm, Mr Tang Kwok Tong Simon and Mr Sun Tao
Hung Stanley will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from all independent non-executive directors, and as at the date of
this report still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 22 to 24 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company entered into a service contract with each of the
following directors for the provision of management services by these
directors to the Group:

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis

Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley
Ms Ng Yuk Wah Eileen

Mr Tang Kwok Tong Simon

Each service contract has a remaining unexpired term of 12 months
as at 31 March 2008 and is subject to termination by either party
upon the giving of three months’ notice to the other party thereafter.
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FAFIBBERKEE :

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election

at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s
board of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities,
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2008, the interests and short positions of the
directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant

to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

BEROHBE - BORERME

Directly Percentage of the
beneficially Founder Beneficiary Company’s issued
Name of director Notes owned of a trust of a trust Total share capital
EARATF
HE =7 BBITRAZ
EEnE k=3 BRER ERERIPA T@mA FEEy Bk
Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis (i) & (ii) 1,000,000 700,034,214 11,242,000 712,276,214 61.20
BAfmEL
Ms Ng Yuk Wah Eileen 250,000 - - 250,000 0.02
REELZT
Mr Tang Kwok Tong Simon 400,000 - - 400,000 0.03
BEIRELE
Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley (iii) & (iv) - - 711,276,214 711,276,214 61.12
BBl EE

EERAQABRECESNUBIRRWT208

R -

The interests of the directors in the share options of the Company are

separately disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements.
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HEEERGREARKRIGZHFE - Long positions in shares and underlying shares of associated
corporations:
Percentage of the
Name of Relationship Capacity associated
associated with the Numbers of  and nature corporation’s
Name of director corporation Company Shares shares held  of interest issued share capital
B8 SR IHAEEEEE LT
EEnE HEZEEER HALRBER e ROHE EREME RAZBEDE
Dr Sun Tai Lun Searich Group Company’s Ordinary shares 25  Beneficiary 25
Dennis Limited intermediate (note (i) of a trust
BAmEL holding
company
KABZ2HN B (M) ErzZamA
ZERAF
-ditto- -ditto- Ordinary shares 75  Founder 75
(note (ii)) of a trust
ENs s EE R (M=) ERERIPEA
100 100
Dr Sun Tai Lun Fine Products Company’s Ordinary shares 103,000,000  Founder 100
Dennis Limited ultimate (note (ii)) of a trust
BAfmiEL holding
company
KRB 2HBHE EE R (L) EERIMA
ZERAF
M EE Notes:

(ii)

BRAMELHBRIES HESB R 11,242,000
BRMD 2R - ZE R HDago CorporationE
##3$5%8 ° Dago Corporation&Trident Corporate
Services (B.V.L) Limited (fF R KRB KM@ L
RERKREFNFE MR ZE1EE7EThe Dennis
Family TrustZ 2 7t A & 13 ) Fit # & ° Dago
Corporation7i 58 Searich Group Limited & %
TIRA25% °

HR B K18+ £The Sun Family TrustZ £l
P A > #1553 BFine Products LimitedZz 2
HEBTRA > WEKGBELHEBEBFine
Products Limited #5758 2700,034,2 14l A2
AP 22 ° Searich Group Limited 2 B
1TBZA75%HFine Products Limited#7 ° Fine
Products Limited % Searich Group Limited fi#¥
AAREEZEMNFRT X EERRRAME
AR RABBERAD 2 s 1545 o

(ii)

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis is deemed to be interested in a total of
11,242,000 shares in the Company directly held by Dago Corporation,
which is owned by Trident Corporate Services (B.V.l.) Limited in its
capacity as the trustee of The Dennis Family Trust, a discretionary trust
established for the benefit of Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis and his family
members. Dago Corporation also holds 25% of the issued share capital

of Searich Group Limited.

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis is deemed to be interested in 700,034,214
shares in the Company held by Fine Products Limited by virtue of
him being the founder of The Sun Family Trust which holds the entire
issued share capital of Fine Products Limited. 75% of the issued share
capital of Searich Group Limited is held by Fine Products Limited.
Details of the interest of Fine Products Limited and Searich Group
Limited in the Company can be found in the section “Substantial
shareholders’ and other persons’ interests in shares and underlying

shares” below.



(iii) BRELEERRESHEFT A QT 11,242,000
Bz o ZE R HDago CorporationE
$#$#48 ° Dago Corporation&Trident Corporate
Services (B.V.L) Limited (fF R RFE A MEL
RERKRB(BERELEE)NEMEREILZ
B 5 155EThe Dennis Family TrustZ ZsEA &
3) Fr # 8 ° Dago CorporationZk # HSearich
Group Limited 2 1T 4x25% °

(iv) B R B 5k % 4 2The Sun Family TrustZ &
#= A {7t BFine Products LimitedZz 2
HEBTRA > WEKGBE LR BEBFine
Products Limited}$%2700,034,2 14872 8]
10 2 # % ° Searich Group LimitedZ 21T
B A75%HFine Products Limited# & ° Fine
Products Limited & Searich Group Limited fT#
AAREHEZEMNFRT X T ERRRAME
ARBRORBERG #1545 -

MR EXFTEE S - H2008F3H31H » EER
AATAREEMEHEIEZRG - HERORE
EEFHEIMEERRRLE  MEREFHS
REEIEPIEXVEBEIS2EBHAZIGEFM 2 &
R REEETRBNERATRERA

EERMBRONBERZIERN
BEXTESRBORAEBREG 2 BRERAR |-
BRUBERM 20 BRENE | —HHE
B ERTBESRESESEBAARERL
R0 TR AR A A2 B4 o M T 2
Ao AAT - HEMERADRELKE LTS
TYEAREREREETREETE AR
2 HEER -

MR E
RAR 2 BRETEFERYBRRMT207 B
SRR o

(iii) Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley is deemed to be interested in a total of
11,242,000 shares in the Company directly held by Dago Corporation,
which is is owned by Trident Corporate Services (B.V.l.) Limited in its
capacity as the trustee of The Dennis Family Trust, a discretionary trust
established for the benefit of Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis and his family
members including Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley. Dago Corporation also

25% of the issued share capital of Searich Group Limited.

(iv) Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley is deemed to be interested in 700,034,214
shares in the Company held by Fine Products Limited by virtue of him
being the beneficiary of The Sun Family Trust which holds the entire
issued share capital of Fine Products Limited. 75% of the issued share
capital of Searich Group Limited is held by Fine Products Limited.
Details of the interest of Fine Products Limited and Searich Group
Limited in the Company can be found in the section “Substantial
shareholders’ and other persons’ interests in shares and underlying
shares” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, none of the
directors had registered an interest or short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” above and in the section
“Share option scheme” disclosures in note 29 to the financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company granted to any director or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company or any of its holding company or subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
Details of the share option schemes of the Company are separately
disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements.
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FERRRERAAMMME ARG RBMEKGZIE
SR%E

7A2008F3A31H  BERAQAIREBEZFSFRBE
FEOIE33IRBEEBE Z2EEZLMAE > THA

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2008, the following interests and short positions in

the shares and the underlying shares of the Company, which were

THEARARDREBRD 2BER LR

(1)

ERETESENTERLI2IEMRRR (1)
BLEI0%H U E2REBZTERRZH

=

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the

Long positions of substantial shareholders who were entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of 10% or more of the

voting power at any general meeting of the Company:

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
Capacity and ordinary issued share
Name of shareholder nature of interest shares held Notes capital
EARRF
2EITRA
RER A B RESMEE FEZERHE Fft = 2Bt
Sun Tai Lun Dennis Beneficial owner 1,000,000
EEVN BEREAA
Beneficiary of a trust 11,242,000
FEZ@A
Founder of a trust 700,034,214
SFERIIEA
712,276,214 61.20
Fine Products Limited Beneficial owner & interest 700,034,214 (i) & (ii) 60.15
of a controlled corporation
BREAARZEEEER
Searich Group Limited Beneficial owner 600,034,214 (i) & (ii) 51.56
BREEA
Trident Corporate Trustee 711,276,214 (i) & (ii) 61.12
Services (B.V.L) Limited  fS7EA
Tang Sau Ying Betty Interest of spouse 712,276,214 (ii) & (iii) 61.20
BE R
Sun Tao Hung Stanley Beneficiary of a trust 711,276,214 (iv) 61.12

#IEsA

EREEHA




FERRREMBARKGREMRKGZIE SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’

SRKE(AE)

(2) HMFERRZHA:

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

(2) Long positions of other substantial shareholders:

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
Capacity and ordinary issued share
Name of shareholder nature of interest shares held Notes capital
EARATR
BEITRA
REREE B RERMEE BEERERYE B 3£ ZADL
Allianz Aktiengesellschaft Interest of a controlled corporation 111,784,000 9.60
S5k B
Allianz Finanzbeteiligungs Interest of a controlled corporation 111,784,000 9.60
GmBH ZEEEER
Dresdner Bank Interest of a controlled corporation 111,784,000 9.60
Aktiengesellschaft SEEEER
Dresdner Bank Interest of a controlled corporation 111,784,000 (v) 9.60
Luxembourg S.A. SEEEER
Veer Palthe Voute NV Interest of an investment manager 111,784,000 (v) 9.60
RELERER
Fung Kwok Lun William Interest of a controlled corporation 70,000,000 (vi) & (viii) 6.01
IBE R SEEEER
Li & Fung (Retailing) Limited Beneficial owner 70,000,000 6.01
Mg (Z8) BRAR ERBEEA
Li & Fung (1937) Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 70,000,000 6.01
ME (1937) BRAA ZEEEER
King Lun Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 70,000,000 6.01
S5k B
J.P. Morgan Trust Company Trustee 70,000,000 (vii) & (viii) 6.01
(Jersey) Limited fSREA
B EE Notes:
(i) 100,000,000 R 10 ((E R AR EBITRMHBZ (i) 100,000,000 shares representing 8.59% of the Company’s shares in
8.59%) HFine Products LimitedE E # & ° issue are directly owned by Fine Products Limited. The remaining
£ T 2600,034,2148% B 19 HSearich Group 600,034,214 shares are owned by Searich Group Limited, in which
Limited#7%8 * MFine Products LimitedBI#EHE Fine Products Limited holds 75% of its issued share capital. Fine
ZA A B BITIRAT5% °© Fine Products Limited Products Limited is owned by Trident Corporate Services (B.V.1.)
#Trident Corporate Services (B.V.1.) Limited Limited in its capacity as the trustee of The Sun Family Trust.
LAThe Sun Family TrustfSsEA B FTER
(ii) ZERRCEREERAMAE LI EEZZR - (ii) Such interests have been included as the interests of Dr Sun Tai Lun
Dennis.
(iii) BERLZLTWRAEBREBRABEL ZEEZM (iii) Ms Tang Sau Ying Betty is deemed to be interested in 712,276,214
HEE712,276, 214 A DB RGP 2 © shares of the Company through the interests of her spouse, Dr Sun Tai
Lun Dennis.
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(iv) BRBLLGREREHE 5 AThe Sun Family Trustfk
Dennis Family TrustZ ¥ = AR ABEEEH
711,276, 2 14AR A DB R 2 s o

(v) Allianz AktiengesellschaftZT’Eﬁ7’.73%;?@_—fzjz‘\ﬂ
FEBMIEFE - BAllianz Finanzbeteiligungs
GmBH ( # B81.1% ) »
Aktiengesellschaft > Dresdner Bank
Luxembourg S.A.} Veer Palthe Voute NV

Dresdner Bank

(vi) BEmEECREDER - RIZEEEMES
B URNE(ZE)ARAE - NE193NFRD
A RKing Lun Holdings LimitedF5E 4 %4
BEH50%) °

(vii) J.P. Morgan Trust Company (Jersey) Limited
ZERDER-RIZTEEREMmMZE  BNE
(ZE)ERDA - FE(1937)8 R 2D A KKing
Lun Holdings Limited ( B4].P. Morgan Trust
Company (Jersey) Limited#&50%) °

ot B S v R (vii) BT At E B &R Sk £ R).P.
Morgan Trust Company (Jersey) Limited Z#&
wIERE —HAR AR KRG °

MR EXFIESE » H2008F3H318 » RALRQ
AESIMEEZRNEERNRORBEERD 2
ERRRR—8) BEEMALTREATRAG
REERDPEEESZIAAEMEREZH R
EIRBIEI36IRIEH T8 ©

(viii)

EHRLRIBERE
BREAARAHUTESZERREBEZESA R
AREAHABRATEEERAARCRITREALRE
B 25% °

& BED

ZXREMEBAERSEER  RARAREBET
CBRREFASLREEBERARAADARE
Rl 2 REER -

BEEEAR

PN
FE

=i
2008F6H26H

(iv) Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley is deemed to be interested in a total
of 711,276,214 shares of the Company by virtue of him being a

beneficiary of The Sun Family Trust and the Dennis Family Trust.

(v) The interests of Allianz Aktiengesellschaft are held via a chain of
controlled corporations namely Allianz Finanzbeteiligungs GmBH
(81.1% owned), Dresdner Bank Aktiengesellschaft, Dresdner Bank
Luxembourg S.A. and Veer Palthe Voute NV.

(vi) The interests of Mr Fung Kwok Lun William are held via a chain of
controlled corporations, namely Li & Fung (Retailing) Limited, Li &
Fung (1937) Limited and King Lun Holdings Limited (which is 50%
owned by Mr Fung Kwok Lun William).

(vii) The interests of J.P. Morgan Trust Company (Jersey) Limited are held
via a chain of controlled corporations, namely Li & Fung (Retailing)
Limited, Li & Fung (1937) Limited and King Lun Holdings Limited
(which is 50% owned by ]J.P. Morgan Trust Company (Jersey) Limited).

(viii) The interests of Mr Fung Kwok Lun William and J.P. Morgan Trust
Company (Jersey) Limited as mentioned in the above notes (vi) and

(vii) refer to the same block of shares in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in

the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sun Tai Lun Dennis
Chairman

Hong Kong
26 June 2008
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To the shareholders of China-Hongkong Photo Products
Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of China-Hongkong
Photo Products Holdings Limited set out on pages 45 to 106,
which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as
at 31 March 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued

by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that

are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards

on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18th Floor Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance street

Central, Hong Kong

26 June 2008



e = P Consolidated Income Statement

B E2008 F£3 B31HILEFEE Year ended 31 March 2008

Notes 2008 2007

Ff=E HK$’000 HK$'000
g REVENUE 6 322,618 827,204
SHERA Cost of sales (209,228) (616,354)
TR A ARER Gross profit 113,390 210,850
HA A K Bz Other income and gains 6 61,173 44,720
HEWA Settlement income 7 - 140,400
HERDHEER Selling and distribution costs (57,217) (59,941)
BERTSERERS Advertising and marketing expenses (9,229) (17,155)
TR Administrative expenses (59,974) (84,919)
Hpgem A~ Other operating income/

(BEx%) - H58 (expenses), net 4,122 (241)
FR%E AR T PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8 52,265 233,714
BiE Tax 11 (6,047) (14,979)
AFEEA PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 46,218 218,735
BB : Attributable to:

AARREFEA Equity holders of the Company 12 46,383 218,824
DY RERS Minority interests (165) (89)
46,218 218,735
BRE DIVIDENDS 13
HhHR Interim 11,638 44,225
R AR B Interim special 32,587 -
B AR HA Proposed final 10,474 60,519
B R 2R 45 B Proposed final special 50,045 -
104,744 104,744
RATEBERRE EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
HEAERLERER ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY 14
A Basic HK3.99 centsi&fll  HK18.80 centsi#fll
s Diluted N/ATEA N/ATEA
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31 March 2008

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Notes 2008 2007
Ff=E HK$’000 HK$'000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
W - BERERE Property, plant and equipment 15 41,907 50,434
REYHE Investment properties 16 124,194 103,248
LSRR Prepaid land lease payments 17 3,062 3,271
5k Goodwill 18 35,878 35,878
HEZS Rental deposits 22 6,110 6,045
ERERIEEE Deferred tax assets 27 6,392 5,597
I RENEEEEE Total non-current assets 217,543 204,473
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
A Inventories 20 27,339 22,789
FEWERER ZE Trade and bills receivables 21 13,005 18,601
BNFE - FTER Prepayments, deposits and
H{th ek BRIE other receivables 22 16,936 24,370
FEREBREANTETE Financial assets at fair value
ZEmMERE through profit or loss 23 236,792 -
o] Y [5) 2 18 Tax recoverable 2,355 2,687
RERRESEEER Cash and cash equivalents 24 680,619 965,257
MENEEHALR Total current assets 977,046 1,033,704
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
EAREREE Trade and bills payables 25 21,334 16,609
EstEEREMEERE  Accrued liabilities and other payables 26 64,319 88,320
FEBEEEEE Total current liabilities 85,653 104,929
REEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 891,393 928,775
BEERRBAEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,108,936 1,133,248
FRBEMS NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
it e Accrued liabilities 26 23,994 2,739
BRI IE A E Deferred tax liabilities 27 11,054 5,624
ERBEBEEE Total non-current liabilities 35,048 8,363
EEFE Net assets 1,073,888 1,124,885
s EQUITY
AQTREFEA Equity attributable to equity
EihEs holders of the Company
BT Issued capital 28 116,383 116,383
& Reserves 30(a) 881,064 931,896
BIRAHRE Proposed final dividend 13 10,474 60,519
BORARHAS RIS Proposed final special dividend 13 50,045 -
1,057,966 1,108,798
DR RERS Minority interests 15,922 16,087
g Total equity 1,073,888 1,124,885
YN REE
EE EE

Sun Tai Lun Dennis

Chairman

Ng Yuk Wah Eileen

Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 March 2008

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ALRRESEAEL
Share Capital ~ Exchange Asset Proposed
Issued  premium redemption fluctuation revaluation  Retained final Minority Total
Notes capital  account’  reserve*  reserve®  reserve’  profits’  dividends Total  interests equity
s 2Ef o) e Ex% B RIERE 24 s
kA RER EEGE 2BGFE EfRE REER RE i REEs a%
HK$000  HKS000 HKS'000  HK$000  HKS000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000
2006548181 At 1 April 2006 116383 4787713 1619 (2637) - 316463 48881 959482 16176 975658
S Exchange realignment = = = 2924 = = = 2924 = 2924
THRETERRL Revaluation surplus on land and buildings,
(MEEERE) et of deferred tax - - - - 20674 - - 06M - 06
EREEERIZNA Total income and expense recognised
AR HEE directly in equity - - - 9% 00674 - - 1358 - 135%
ERighl Profit for the year = - - = - 21884 - 21881 (89) 21873
ERPARR AR Total income and expense for the year = = - 291 20674 218824 - mm (89) 242333
BA2006ERERE 2006 final dividend paid - - - - - - (48881)  (48881) - (48881
B2007ERERE 2007 interim dividend paid 13 = - - = - (44225) - W) - W)
RR007ERBRE 2007 proposed final dividend 3 - - - = - (60519) 60519 - - =
120074331 B R2007548 1R At 31 March 2007 and 1 April 2007 116383 478773 1619 87 20674 430543 60519 1,108798 16087 1,124,885
ERHE Exchange realignment = = = 2,219 = - - 2219 - 2219
EREERRAZHA Total income and expense recognised
bt directly in equity - - - - = - -
ERighl Profit for the year = - - = - 16383 - 46383 (165) 46,218
ERWARS AR Total income and expense for the year = - - - 46383 - 48662 (165) 48497
BN AR RRRR Release of reserve upon deregistration
Zfte of subsiciaries - - - 5250 - - - 50 - 50
B007ERERE 2007 final dividend paid 13 = = = = = - (60519)  (60519) - (60519)
BH2008F RS 2008 interim dividend paid 13 - - - - - (11,638) - (11639) - (11639)
B12008FRHHIRE 2008 interim special dividend paid 13 = - - = - (3158)) - (3258 - (3258])
HR2008FRBRE 2008 proposed final dividend 13 = = = = - (10474) 10474 = = =
HR2008FRHRRIRE 2008 proposed final specil dividend 3 - - = = - (50045 50,045 = = =
2008534318 At 31 March 2008 116383 478773 1619 7816 20674 372,180 60519 1057966 15922 1,073,888

: HEREREENGEEERBRZGERESRYE
881,064,000t (20074 : ##931,896,0007T) ©

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$881,064,000 (2007: HK$931,896,000) in the consolidated balance

sheet.
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Year ended 31 March 2008

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$°000
REXBRER CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BRBE AT A Profit before tax 52,265 233,714
BT HIFEE Adjustments for:
FEUA Interest income (31,283) (31,508)
HERE N T W ES Gain on disposal of an associate = (6,774)
FEBBRIEATE Fair value gain on financial
FE2ERMEE assets at fair value
PANS L6 through profit or loss (5,132) =
e Depreciation 16,839 18,852
BRFENLHEE Recognition of prepaid land
lease payments 209 690
HEWE  BER (Gain)/loss on disposal of
REER 2 items of property,
(W) HiE plant and equipment 294 (354)
Y% - MERRMEEE  Reversal of impairment of items of
AR property, plant and equipment - (3,102)
EH&EEIE&%—’%E?EME/ Impairment/(write-back of impairment)

CRER ) - %8 of trade and bills receivables, net (1,807) 1,293
FEURBRIE & Z= 45 i Write-off of trade and bills receivables 1,148 =
ERARIE G2k Write-off of prepayments,

H fib fE UL BRI Rl £5 deposits and other receivables 1,889 =
H fth & Uk BRIERIL(E Impairment on an other receivable - 1,000
FEREBRR Write-back of provision
against inventories (267) (28,692)
FE{TERIE R 5 5 Write-back of trade and bills payables (2,501) =
ErtaEREimE Write-back of accrued liabilities
L EEE and other payables (2,595) =
REVMELNTEEY Changes in fair value of
investment properties (19,076) 2,972
9,983 188,091
FE52z (M), R (Increase)/decrease in inventories (4,283) 149,449
FEWBRIER =452 M4  Decrease in trade and bills receivables 6,255 66,803
HERe  AFE Decrease in rental deposits,
HE Y3 prepayments, deposits and
U5 BRTE 2 i D other receivables 5,480 1,371
ENERERZE Increase/(decrease) in trade
=i, Gld) and bills payables 7,226 (33,227)
EstaERk  EtEN Increase/(decrease) in accrued
BRIE 2 #2400, CRia) liabilities and other payables (151) 5,567
REEEBIES Cash generated from operations 24,510 378,054
EBEBHER Hong Kong profits tax paid (970) (15,519)
BN IE Overseas taxes paid (110) (2,634)
REZK 2 IRERMAFE Net cash inflow from operating activities 23,430 359,901




SEIREREFE(4ZE) Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

B £2008 F£3 A31 HILFE Year ended 31 March 2008
Notes 2008 2007
FEE HK$'000 HK$'000
BEEK 2SR AFE Net cash inflow from operating activities 23,430 359,901
REZFHZHER CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BWFIE Interest received 31,283 31,508
BAYE  BER Purchases of items of property,
REGEHE plant and equipment 15 (7,327) (8,853)
HEWE BER Proceeds from disposal of items of
RfE1E B T8 RRIE property, plant and equipment 128 1,699
HEBE NT TS  Proceeds from disposal of an associate - 16,381
BEZBERIEAFE Purchase of financial assets at fair
STE2EmMEE value through profit or loss (231,660) -
RIBARRZIHIHEEB (Increase)/decrease in non-pledged
=88 2 EIEIFRIT bank deposits with original maturity of
FR Eghm) SR more than three months when acquired 315,390 (566,470)
BEFHZHERA  Net cash inflow/(outflow)
() H58 from investing activities 107,814 (525,735)
METHZRER CASH FLOW FROM A FINANCING ACTIVITY
ENRERAEEEE Dividends paid and cash outflow
ZBEERH from a financing activity (104,744) (93,106)
fi%&ﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁ E 2 NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
120, () CASH EQUIVALENTS 26,500 (258,940)
ﬁ?ﬂﬁ@&fﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁ B Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 336,688 594,106
ERGH 2 FEE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 4,252 1,522
FRASKESLEEBEE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 367,440 336,688
RERREEEERA ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
REER D AT CASH EQUIVALENTS 31
RERIBITHEER Cash and bank balances 42,520 66,212
REBARRZHALDHA  Non-pledged time deposits
=EAREEHz with original maturity of less
IR EEFER than three months when acquired 324,920 270,476

367,440 336,688
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Balance Sheet
31 March 2008

Notes 2008 2007
B EE HK$’000 HK$’000
FREBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Kop NGl Interests in subsidiaries 19 793,043 795,225
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
A EPNGIE Due from a subsidiary 19 60,519 60,519
Hh e BRIE Other receivables 22 234 216
ReRRS$EEER Cash and cash equivalents 24 599 383
RBEEAE Total current assets 61,352 61,118
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
EstEER HME(IERIE  Accrued liabilities and other payables 26 3,388 3,946
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 57,964 57,172
EEFE Net assets 851,007 852,397
xR EQUITY
BETRAR Issued capital 28 116,383 116,383
1] Reserves 30(b) 674,105 675,495
RIRARERE Proposed final dividend 13 10,474 60,519
EORAH S BIIR B Proposed final special dividend 13 50,045 -
B Total equity 851,007 852,397
BAfm REE
= EE

Sun Tai Lun Dennis

Chairman

Ng Yuk Wah Eileen

Director
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2.1

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited is a limited
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of

the Company is located at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda. The principal place of business of
the Company is located at 8/F, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre, 220-
248 Texaco Road, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally involved in the
marketing and distribution of photographic developing,
processing and printing products, the operations of retail
photographic developing and processing shops and the provision
of technical services for photographic developing and processing

products.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Fine Products
Limited, which is a company incorporated in the British Virgin

Islands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued

by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,

accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when

otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2008.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All significant intercompany transactions and balances

within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interest of outside shareholders
not held by the Group in the results and net assets of the

Company'’s subsidiaries.
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2008 £ 3 A 31 H 31 March 2008
22 HA REBIT2EBRBREEA 2 2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
2 REPORTING STANDARDS
AEBEREAFEZHBRREXZEMAT I The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
AT KRBT 2B BM B RMELER o BREL for the first time for the current year's financial statements.
BEBEEERMAMITREBITHNSTHE Except for in certain cases, giving rise to new and revised
REMEEIN  RAMEFHET REEFTER accounting policies and additional disclosures, the adoption of
RREBHAMBERRUBEATE - these new and revised standards and interpretations have had no
material effect on these financial statements.
EBMBHRELERNEIR SWMIAE:KE HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
ST EAF IR 2B EREE HKAS 1 Amendment Capital Disclosures
B8 (BB KRS BEBMBRE HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2
REBZEEE)- HERISE25%
REESR 2 & E
58 (BRI HERE RAETETAEZ HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
REZEEY) - B Derivatives
REHR
38 (BB R RS rhHA B AE SR & HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
REZEEE)- KR E Impairment
REEI10%
i (BRI BHRE EBRRE HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share
REBZEEE)- ZERIFE255 — Transactions
REEIR EERER
RHR5
?;é@%i%%ﬁﬂ&féﬁﬂ EEIISRELER > The principal effects of adopting these new revised HKFRSs are
T as follows:
(a) BEMBRELEQNEIRISTIE : (a) HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”
W&
SEBBECREAEHEREZGH This standard requires disclosures that enable users of the
EZUHAEBYEARMTAYSEMRZZ financial statements to evaluate the significance of the
ARTEEAER T HEREEEY Group'’s financial instruments and the nature and extent
Sk o SR ERE AN EENERE 2 of risks arising from those financial instruments. The new
SO ERRER BRI LB disclosures are included throughout the financial statements.
EVTESE  FEEELREHNYOE While there has been no effect on the financial position or
it EHFIR o results of operations of the Group, comparative information
has been included/revised where appropriate.
b) BEEHEQNEIR LU HER (b) Amendment to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
x5 -EAXRFE | Statements — Capital Disclosures”
ISR ENREBELTHRE - A{EH This amendment requires the Group to make new
BRE > EREEHAERSASENE disclosures that enable users of the financial statements to
T R RIREEH (L o Ry evaluate the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for
BRI TR EMEE36HF o managing capital. These new disclosures are shown in note

36 to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 “Scope of HKFRS 2”

This interpretation requires HKFRS 2 to be applied to any
arrangement in which the Group cannot identify specifically
some or all of the goods or services received, for which
equity instruments are granted or liabilities (based on a
value of the Group’s equity instruments) are incurred by
the Group for a consideration, and which appears to be
less than the fair value of the equity instruments granted or
liabilities incurred. As the Company has only issued equity
instruments to the Group’s employees for identified services
provided in accordance with the Company’s share option
schemes, the interpretation has had no effect on these

financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 “Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives”

This interpretation requires that the date to assess whether
an embedded derivative is required to be separated from
the host contract and accounted for as a derivative is the
date that the Group first becomes a party to the contract,
with reassessment only if there is a change to the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows. As the Group
has no embedded derivative requiring separation from the
host contract, the interpretation has had no effect on these

financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 “Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment”

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of 1 April
2007, which requires that an impairment loss recognised

in a previous interim period in respect of goodwill or an
investment in either an equity instrument classified as
available-for-sale or a financial asset carried at cost is not
subsequently reversed. As the Group had no impairment
losses previously reversed in respect of such assets, the
interpretation has had no impact on the financial position or

results of operations of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 “HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share

Transactions”

This interpretation requires arrangements whereby an
employee is granted rights to the Group’s equity instruments
to be accounted for as an equity-settled scheme, even if the
Group acquires the instruments from another party, or the
shareholders provide the equity instruments needed. This
interpretation also addresses the accounting for share-based
payment transactions involving two or more entities within
the Group. As the Group has no outstanding share options
granted under either share option scheme, the interpretation

has had no effect on these financial statements. 55
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23 CERBEMRERNEEHBEREE
AlfEE
FEELRAGEHBERERNRATIIER
1B R AT RNEBTNE B BER

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

HAER| o financial statements.

ERMBMEED  UROBER TR - HKFRS 2 Amendment Share-based Payments — Vesting
F28E 2188 7R R R Conditions and Cancellation'

BERUBHRELED EBEH HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations?
EELACSCHY

BERVBRELEL KEHE HKFRS 8 Operating Segments'
$85%

BEGTTER BiEHRE 225 HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements'
H15E (B1ERT)

FEGTER BEERA! HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing costs'
235 (RIBET)

BEGTTER FAERBILGIERE? HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
275 (&IEFT) Statements?

BB EL MEESHMIA HKAS 32 Puttable Financial Instruments and
E2HEREE RBBEEE and HKAS 1 Obligations Arising
=Rl ZEE Amendments on Liquidation'
ERE A T

HB (EBRTERE REISTFZHEE HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements?
REZEY) -
REEI23

&8 (BRI HRSE TP OB HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes*
REBZE®)-
REE135

&8 (BRI HRE BEBSTTEREI95% - HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
REBZEEE)- REBNEEZ Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
REE 145 Rl - RIEES Requirements and their Interaction?

ERRFEEZ

ERER
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23 CEMAENRERNERTHREE 2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
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KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

Amendment to HKFRS 2 clarifies the definition of “vesting
conditions” and specifies the accounting treatment of
“cancellations” by the counterparty to a share-based

arrangement.

HKFRS 3 (Revised) amended the definition of a business and a
business combination and additional guidance was added for
identifying when a group of assets constitutes a business. It also
clarifies how the acquirer makes any classifications, designations
or assessments for the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities

assumed in a business combination.

HKFRS 8, which will replace HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting”,
specifies how an entity should report information about its
operating segments, based on information about the components
of the entity that is available to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of allocating resources to the segments
and assessing their performance. The standard also requires

the disclosure of information about the products and services
provided by the segments, the geographical areas in which the
Group operates, and revenue from the Group’s major customers.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 8 from 1 January 2009.

HKAS 1 has been revised to affect the presentation of owner
changes in equity and comprehensive income. The revised
standard will use “statement of financial position” and “statement
of cash flows” to replace the titles “balance sheet” and “cash flow
statement”, and in making reference to these two statements
within a complete set of financial statements. in addition, this
standard introduces the statement of comprehensive income: it
presents all items of income and expense recognised in profit

or loss, together with all other items of recognised income

and expense, either in one single statement, or in two linked

statements.

HKAS 23 has been revised to require capitalisation of borrowing
costs when such costs are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset. As the Group’s
current policy for borrowing costs aligns with the requirements of
the revised standard, the revised standard is unlikely to have any

financial impact on the Group.

HKAS 27 has been revised to add new term “non-controlling
interest” to replace the term “minority interest”, and required the
changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do
not result in the loss of control must be accounted for as equity
transactions. It also specifies how an entity measures any gain or
loss arising on the loss of control of a subsidiary.
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KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments permitted a range of
entities to recognise their capital as equity rather than as financial
liabilities, and required additional disclosures for puttable financial
instruments classified as equity. The amendment reinforces that
this is a limited scope exception to the definition of a financial

liability and no analogies should be made to its requirements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 requires an operator under public-to-private
service concession arrangements to recognise the consideration
received or receivable in exchange for the construction services
as a financial asset and/or an intangible asset, based on the terms
of the contractual arrangements. HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 also addresses
how an operator shall apply existing HKFRSs to account for

the obligations and the rights arising from service concession
arrangements by which a government or a public sector entity
grants a contract for the construction of infrastructure used to

provide public services and/or for the supply of public services.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 requires that loyalty award credits granted to
customers as part of a sales transaction are accounted for as a
separate component of the sales transaction. The consideration
received in the sales transaction is allocated between the loyalty
award credits and the other components of the sale. The amount
allocated to the loyalty award credits is determined by reference
to their fair value and is deferred until the awards are redeemed

or the liability is otherwise extinguished.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 addresses how to assess the limit under

HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”, on the amount of a refund or a
reduction in future contributions in relation to a defined benefit
scheme that can be recognised as an asset, in particular, when a

minimum funding requirement exists.

The Group has not early adopted these new HKFRSs in the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2008. The
Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of
these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and revised HKFRSs would have a significant impact
on its results of operations and financial position and presentation

of consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain

benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement,
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity. The joint venture operates as a separate entity in which

the Group and the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates
the capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the duration
of the joint venture entity and the basis on which the assets are
to be realised upon its dissolution. The profits and losses from
the joint venture’s operations and any distributions of surplus
assets are shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their
respective capital contributions, or in accordance with the terms

of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as a subsidiary, if the Group has

unilateral control, directly or indirectly, over the joint venture.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets
acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed as at

the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet as an asset, initially measured at cost and

subsequently at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group

performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of

units.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a

subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group

of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on
the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion

of the cash-generating unit retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment
properties and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount

of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value

in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the

relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for

the asset in prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss is

credited to the income statement in the period in which it arises,

unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case

the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance

with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or its parent;

(c) the party is a close member of the family of any individual

referred to in (a) or (b);

(d) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled

or significantly influenced by or for which significant voting

power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any

individual referred to in (b) or (c); or

(e) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a

related party of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing

the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase

in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from
the use of an item of property, plant and equipment, and where
the cost of the item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is

capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Valuations are performed upon the transfer from property, plant

and equipment to investment properties.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 5% or over the

remaining lease terms

Furniture, fixtures and 20% to 33'/,%

leasehold improvements

Machinery and equipment 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated

separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the income statement in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair

value, which reflects market conditions at the balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement in

the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income statement in

the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from an owner-occupied property to an investment
property, the Group accounts for such property in accordance
with the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any difference
at that date between the carrying amount and the fair value of
the property is dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation
reserve. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion

of the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained profits as a movement in

reserves.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to

the income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases, net of any incentives received from the lessor,
are charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis

over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and

buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and loans and
receivables, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly

attributable transaction costs.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets
after initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-

evaluates this designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial asset are
recognised on the trade date, this is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through

profit or loss.

Financial assets are designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria are

met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces

the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or recognising gains or losses on them on
a different basis; (ii) the assets are part of a group of financial
assets which are managed and their performance evaluated

on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or (iii) the financial asset contains an
embedded derivative that would need to be separately recorded.
Gains or losses on these financial assets are recognised in the
income statement. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the income statement does not include any dividends on these

financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised

cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction costs.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well

as through the amortisation process.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised
financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market
bid prices at the close of business at the balance sheet date.

For investments where there is no active market, fair value is
determined using valuation techniques. Such techniques include
using recent arm'’s length market transactions; reference to the
current market value of another instrument which is substantially

the same; and a discounted cash flow analysis.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of

financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either
directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount
of the impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.
Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are

written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting
the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised in the income statement, to the extent that the
carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at

the reversal date.

In relation to trade receivables, a provision for impairment is
made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability
of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor

and significant changes in the technological, market economic

or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor)
that the Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts due
under the original term of an invoice. The carrying amount of the
receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Impaired debts are derecognised when they are assessed as

uncollectible.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised

where:

® the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

* the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-

through” arrangement; or

* the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and

rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of

the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration

that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables and other
payables are initially stated at fair value less directly attributable
transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. The related interest expense is recognised within “finance

costs” in the income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

amortisation process.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the

income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any

estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral

part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,

which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the balance
sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance

costs in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates
to items that are recognised in the same or a different period

directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or

paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for

financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

* where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill or the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

® in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can

be utilised except:

* where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

® in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.
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FTEGHEERE(#®) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Frie®i (&) Income tax (Continued)
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely,
previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) from the provision of film processing, photo-finishing
services and technical services for photographic developing
and processing products, when the services have been
rendered;

(c) subsidies from a supplier and settlement income, when the
right to receive payment has been established;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset;

(e) fair value gain of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, when there is a change in the quoted market bid
prices at the close of business at the balance sheet date; and

(f) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-

settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer
using a binomial model. In valuing equity-settled transactions,
no account is taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company

(“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which
the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on
the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled
to the award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each balance sheet
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of

the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the

beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other

performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, which increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the

employee as measured at the date of modification.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However,

if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the previous

paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per

share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in
respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only to
equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had
not vested by 1 April 2005 and to those granted on or after 1
April 2005.

Other employee benefits

Prepaid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at
the balance sheet date is permitted to be carried forward and
utilised by the respective employees in the following year. An
accrual is made at the balance sheet date for the expected future
cost of such paid leave earned during the year by the employees

and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and a defined contribution
occupational retirement scheme (the “ORSO scheme”) under
the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the schemes. The assets of both schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in independently administered funds.
The Group’s employer contributions to both schemes vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the schemes, except
for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions to the ORSO
scheme, which are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in

accordance with the rules of the ORSO scheme.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the balance sheet, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends have
been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are

recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed

and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions are initially recorded using the functional currency
rates ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date. All differences are taken to the income statement.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was

determined.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries located in
Mainland China are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date,
and their income statements are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are included in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred
cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular

foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash
flows of subsidiaries located in Mainland China are translated

into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for

the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or

liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant

effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

(i) Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor
The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined
that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of these properties which are leased out on

operating leases.

(ii) Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties
The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by the
Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

(ii) Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties (Continued)
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately (or leased out separately under finance
leases), the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or

for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a

property does not qualify as an investment property.

(iii) Impairment of assets
The Group has to exercise judgement in determining
whether an asset is impaired or the event previously
causing the asset impairment no longer exists, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that may affect
the asset value or such event affecting the asset value has
not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the
level of impairment, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the

impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

discussed below.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an

active market for similar lease terms and other contracts.

In the absence of such information, the Group considers
information from a variety of sources, including (i) by
reference to independent valuations; (ii) current prices

in an active market for properties of a different nature,
condition and location (or subject to different leases or other
contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences; (iii) recent
prices of similar properties in less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions
since the date of transactions that occurred at those prices;
and (iv) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms of any
existing lease and other contracts, and (where possible) from
external evidence such as current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition, and using
discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the

uncertainty in the amount and timing of cash flows.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of

the fair value include those related to current market rents
for similar properties in the same location and condition,
appropriate discount rates, expected future market rents and

future maintenance costs.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant
and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of

items of property, plant and equipment, the Group has to
consider various factors, such as technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in
production, or from a change in the market demand for the
product or service output of the asset, expected usage of
the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the
use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset
is based on the experience of the Group with similar assets
that are used in a similar way. Additional depreciation is
made if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment are different from
previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at each financial year end date based on changes

in circumstances.
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4., EXRETHE RS #) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
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(iv)

The Group determines whether a financial asset or goodwill
is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the financial asset or goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of
the expected future cash flows from the financial asset or
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. A change in the estimated future cash flows and/

or the discount rate applied will result in an adjustment

to the estimated impairment provision previously made.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March 2008 was
HK$35,878,000 (2007: HK$35,878,000). Further details of
impairment testing of goodwill are set out in note 18 to the

financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax

losses and deductible temporary differences arising from
impairment on trade and bills receivables and inventories

to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses and deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies. The carrying values of deferred

tax assets relating to recognised tax losses and provision
against inventories as at 31 March 2008 were HK$6,641,000
(2007: HK$6,898,000) and HK$17,000 (2007: HK$34,000),
respectively. The amounts of unrecognised tax losses and
temporary differences on impairment on trade receivables

as at 31 March 2008 were HK$19,258,000 (2007:
HK$24,975,000), HK$141,745,000 (2007: HK$141,745,000).
Further details are contained in note 27 to the financial

statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION
Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by business
segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by

geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations and the
products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s business
segments represents a strategic business unit that offers products
and services which are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of the other business segments. Summary

details of the business segments are as follows:

(a) the merchandise segment engages in the marketing and
distribution of photographic developing, processing and

printing products and sale of photographic merchandises;

(b) the service segment engages in the provision of film
processing, photo-finishing services and technical services

for photographic developing and processing products; and

(c) the corporate and others segment comprises the Group’s
investment property business together with corporate

income and expense items.

During the year, management changed the presentation of
segment information from wholesale and retail segments to
merchandise and service segments. Management considered

that the change provides a more appropriate presentation of the
Group’s existing operating structure. Comparative information has

been restated to conform with the current year’s presentation.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues
are attributed to the segments based on the location of the
customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based on

the location of the assets.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted at cost plus a

mark-up of approximately 21% (2007: 25%).
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5. DEER @) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) ¥Bo8E (a) Business segments
TRFEFVWAREBEH Z2008F K 2007F The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and
SABIHLFEERYERE RS certain asset, liability and expenditure information of the
B (BRIRETEE  B8BEREX Group’s business segments for the years ended 31 March
ZEH - 2008 and 2007.
Merchandise Service Corporate and Others Eliminations Consolidated
ER#E R PERAM B EE)
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
(Restated) (Restated)
(E5) (E30)
RS Segment revenue:
PMREFZHE  Sales to external customers 692,954 134,250 - - 827,204
HEE2HER  Intersegment sales 31912 3,810 - (35,722) -
HitARKE  Other income and gains 1,591 2,470 2377 - 6,438
st Total 726,457 140,530 2,377 (35,722) 833,642
PEEE Segment results 52,086 5,930 (2,984) - 55,032
FIEWAR Interest income
RABWE and unallocated gains 38,282
EELON Settlement income 140,400 - - - 140,400
BEATER Profit before tax 233,714
BE Tax (14,979)
KEERF Profit for the year 218,735
Merchandise Service Corporate and Others Consolidated
Em#E R TEREM &&
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
(Restated) (Restated)
(E31) (E31)
EERGE Assets and liabilities
AEEE Segment assets 143,902 70,412 264,636
KRAREE Unallocated assets 973,541
BEE Total assets 1,238,177
AEER Segment liabilities 88,921 9,928 107,668
F*AEER Unallocated liabilities 5,624
BaE Total liabilities 113,202
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) Business segments (Continued)

Merchandise Service Corporate and Others Consolidated
ER#E % bEREM Ga
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
(Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (E31)
HtpEER: Other segment information:
RERER Depreciation and recognition
Eft s of prepaid land
lease payments 5,821 11,879 19,542
nE - BER Reversal of impairment
RERERR of items of property,
plant and equipment (3,102) - (3,102)
EARX Capital expenditure 2,666 5,622 8,853
RENE Changes in fair value
NFEEE of investment properties - - 2972
EURRERE Impairment/(write-back
BHE/ (A of impairment) of trade and
Ef) - FE bills receivables, net 1,293 - 1,293
HivERERERE Impairment of an
other receivable 1,000 - 1,000
FERERRE Write-back of provision
against inventories (28,600) 92) (28,692)
(b) WESE (b) Geographical segments

TRE2VAEBEE Z20085F R 2007F
3ABIBLEEHMESE2BEEWS

The following table presents revenue and certain asset

and expenditure information of the Group’s geographical

ETEERBAXZER - segments for the years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007.
Hong Kong Mainland China Consolidated
D IR &E
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
DEWE Segment revenue:
AREF Sales to external
ZHE customers 650,636 176,568 827,204
H2hoE Other segment
BH information:
PEEE Segment assets 1,110,504 127,673 1,238,177
EXEX Capital expenditure 8,826 27 8,853
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents (i) the
net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and
trade discounts; and (ii) the income from the rendering of film
processing, photo-finishing services and technical services for

photographic developing and processing products.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
(Restated)
(&%)
Wz Revenue
EmHE Sale of goods 692,954
FEMOPEE - BAEFEDR  Income from the rendering of film processing,
F AT RIS U A photo-finishing services and technical services 134,250
827,204
= PN A€ Other income and gains
FEUA Interest income 31,508
HEeWALE (FEES) Gross rental income (note 8) 2,367
e 2 28, Subsidies from a supplier 458
HEBRE N TR Gain on disposal of an associate 6,774
BBERIEATFESTE  Fair value gain on financial assets
ZERMEREZAFEWE  at fair value through profit or loss -
REMELTEEE Changes in fair value of investment properties (note 8) -
(FfEE8)
Hith Others 3,613
44,720
[ZE L ON 7. SETTLEMENT INCOME

M2006F6A30H » AREEE U EEHE
BRI — I8 0 Ll 20065 10A20R #E
KRIFERRE@ETHBARTLNE T2
WEMALLLEBZED - RIELLTHE AEH
TEAZTERERNETERZIHE -
WHREB ZE2007F3831BLFERBAZEE
HAER A E WA -

On 30 June 2006, the Group entered into an agreement with a
major supplier to terminate certain distributorship agreements
with certain subsidiaries of the Group with effect from 20
October 2006 (the “Termination Agreement”). Pursuant to the
Termination Agreement, the Group ceased to be the distributor
of certain products of this major supplier and received the
settlement income from this major supplier during the year
ended 31 March 2007.
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8. BR¥LAIEF 8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
REBRBADEREMBR(FFA): The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
Notes 2008 2007
i HK$'000 HK$°000
HEBEMA Cost of inventories sold** 591,067
TRPRA AR A Cost of services provided** 53,979
REMHE Auditors’ remuneration 1,100
nE Depreciation 15 18,852
¥ REREE Reversal of impairment of items of

BEER property, plant and equipment* 15 (3,102)
BREMTHES Recognition of prepaid land lease payments 17 690
T REFZRER Minimum lease payments under operating leases

KernEse on land and buildings 31,782
HENE BERFREEEZ  (Gain)/loss on disposal of items of property,

(k&) /' plant and equipment* (354)
BERERE Write-back of provision against inventories** (28,692)
EUERERZERE Impairment/(write-back of impairment) of

(RERR) - 358 trade and bills receivables, net* 1,293
HitE W RERE" Impairment of an other receivable* 1,000
ek Bad debts recovered* (1,568)
EWEERZEME: Write-off of trade and bills receivables* -
BATE - TEREM Write-off of prepayments, deposits

FEUK AR IE A and other receivables* -
EREEREERE Write-back of trade and bills payables* -
FEEBEREMEMEERE"  Write-back of accrued liabilities and other payables* -
RENELTEED Changes in fair value of investment properties 16 2,972
EERFHEX Employee benefits expense (including directors’

(BHEBRHFOZESME)  remuneration as set out in note 9)

IERES Wages and salaries 60,449

RIRSF AN Pension scheme contributions 2,553

RERKESRE Provision for long service payments 162

B R e Less: Forfeited contributions*** .

RS EMTE Net pension scheme contributions 2,715

63,164
HEWALE Gross rental income 6 (2,367)
RS2 RENMEREZ Direct expenses (including repairs and maintenance)
BEERY (BEEBRAE)  arsing on rental-earning investment properties 1,123
HeWAFE Net rental income (1,244)
ERER T8 Foreign exchange differences, net (1,443)
* ZEBEHOCRGAERERIEMMELEHRA S * Included in “Other operating income/(expenses), net” on the face of
(B) » FREI—MWAHIER - the consolidated income statement.

o ZEEBEERGEBRERIGEREI—HR ** Included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated income
HIBR © statement.

**+ JA2008F3A31H » A& E I K KRR *** As at 31 March 2008, the Group had no forfeited contributions
REFEHRZE R KR IKE B H (2007 available to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in future

FE)o years (2007: Nil).
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9. EEMSE 9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
FRARBEEBHERSMERDAEREF Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
ERRATETRADREEDAGRLE Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of
161 BECESHMENT ¢ The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as
follows:
Group
e
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
ik Fees 788 840
Hib< : Other emoluments:
e K2R, Salaries and allowances 4,672 4,889
JETRFIMETEAL Discretionary bonuses 1,490 1,139
RINSFHEIMR Pension scheme contributions 48 48
6,998 6,916
(a) BYkHTES (a) Independent non-executive directors
ERSXNFBIEHTES 2SN The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
T : the year were as follows:
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
B3 Au Man Chung Malcolm 110 100
BFM Wong Chi Yun Allan 100 110
FRE Li Ka Fai David 120 120
gl Liu Hui Allan 90 -
(2] Chiang Yun Rachel 38 -
458 330

FRUBEMENTFBIFPTESZ
B <€ (20074 : &) -

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year (2007:
Nil).

(b) BITEERFEHITES (b) Executive directors and non-executive directors
Pension
Salaries and  Discretionary scheme Total
Fees allowances bonuses  contributions remuneration
Rk
e  HeREE FRHMTA HEES ewsm
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
20085 2008
HirES:! Executive directors:
YN Sun Tai Lun Dennis 90 2,360 812 12 3,274
REiE Ng Yuk Wah Eileen 80 844 238 12 1,174
HEX Tang Kwok Tong Simon 80 820 235 12 1,147
3TN Sun Tao Hung Stanley 80 648 205 12 945

330 4,672 1,490 48 6,540
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9. EEME#® 9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) HITEERIFHTEEH (b) Executive directors and non-executive directors
(Continued)
Pension
Salaries and  Discretionary scheme Total
Fees allowances bonuses  contributions remuneration
Rk

wE  FEREE FREMEA  HEMY  HeeR
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000

20075 2007
HTES: Executive directors:
YN Sun Tai Lun Dennis 20 2,541 602 12 3,245
REE Ng Yuk Wah Eileen 80 865 207 12 1,164
HEZX Tang Kwok Tong Simon 80 865 178 12 1,135
Hissh Sun Tao Hung Stanley 80 618 152 12 862
330 4,889 1,139 48 6,406
FHTES Non-executive directors:
gE Liu Hui Allan 20 - - - 20
E32) Chiang Yun Rachel 90 - - - 90
510 4,889 1,139 48 6,586

B £2008F K2007F3H31H It §F
B UWEAMNZHEEESHESREN
BEEMEE -

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the years ended
31 March 2008 and 2007.

10. 5B EHFMES 10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

FR5uGES S MIES SE4(2007F : 4
MBS HFEMFBCHE L XHEORE -
FRESKIU(2007F 1) HEERES
FTHESE 2 FHESHEBNT ¢

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2007: four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining
one (2007: one) non-director, highest paid employee for the year

are as follows:

Group
5=
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$°000
e KIER, Salaries and allowances 795 755
BIRE TR Pension scheme contributions 12 12
807 767

HWEWAETIHEZFESRHESHNE
BAH:

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose

remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

Number of employees

2 Z 785 1,000,0007T Nil to HK$ 1,000,000

REAH
2008 2007
1 1
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11. BiE
ERFEBRBBEFANES BRI A5 ER
FaA > BBE17.5% (2007F : 17.5%)1F
REEE - PEARENE(HE ] ERS
BANREBRAEELCEEL 2 BETH
HWARIBRITEA - ARBREFETH -

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

11. TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5%
(2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) have been calculated at the rates of
tax prevailing in the location in which the Group operates, based

on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect

thereof.
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$°000
£ Group:

RE-FE Current — Hong Kong
FRFHR Charge for the year 1,117 4,933
FFBREERE Overprovision in prior years (24) (374)
RE—-FEAH Current — Mainland China 319 3,818
1,412 8,377
EEBIE (FFE27) Deferred (note 27) 4,635 6,602
FAREBEZH Total tax charge for the year 6,047 14,979

FRAAARARENBARKERMEME 2
ERBHECRBAEN 2 EARERS
HEERREGECRERI ZHE  UR
BAREAEERX) BERE R 2 RN
T

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
using the statutory rates for the location in which the Company
and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the
effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e.

statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

Hong Kong Mainland China Total
BB HEIR #Et
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000

%8~ 2008F Group — 2008
BB AT R Profit before tax 47,363 4,902 52,265
EEBE Statutory tax rate 17.5% 33%
BEEBRERFEZBR Tax at the statutory tax rate 8,288 1,618 9,906
HBIHEESRHE Adjustments in respect of current tax

AR of previous periods (24) - (24)
BB E IR E Adjustments in respect of deferred tax

-k of previous periods (1,316) 1,767 451
REFWA Income not subject to tax (5,353) (1,306) (6,659)
TAHB X Expenses not deductible for tax 760 3,695 4,455
BRI ELEHIEEE Derecognition of deferred tax assets 17 - 17
EEBEHBEEZ Tax losses utilised from

FIEEE previous periods (2,099) - (2,099)
BAREEERBEE 2 Tax charge at the Group’s

BIEZ effective rate 273 5,774 6,047
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11. TAX (Continued)

Hong Kong Mainland China Total
5% HEIR #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

&8 - 2007F Group — 2007
BRBLATEA Profit before tax 228,545 5,169 233,714
EEME Statutory tax rate 17.5% 33%
BEERETEZHIE Tax at the statutory tax rate 39,995 1,706 41,701
PBTHEERFE Adjustments in respect of current tax

2R of previous periods (374) - (374)
PBIRIELERE Adjustments in respect of deferred tax

2T of previous periods 503 (35) 468
REFUBA Income not subject to tax (33,354) (1) (33,355)
AN H Expenses not deductible for tax 1,190 1,832 3,022
EUERRELERIEEE Derecoghition of deferred tax assets 6,824 - 6,824
HEBEHEEEZ Tax losses utilised from

BiEEE previous periods (3,307) - (3,307)
BASEERHERTEZ Tax charge at the Group's

BEXZE effective rate 11,477 3,502 14,979

12. AR REFEABLER 12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

B £2008F3A31ALEE AARKRE
BHEAEBGGREEFHBM103,354,0007T
(20074 : #%106,213,0007T) * ERALRQ
A B ImE P 25 (HFF30(b)) ©

13. 2

COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2008 includes a profit of
HK$103,354,000 (2007: HK$106,213,000) which has been dealt

with in the financial statements of the Company (note 30(b)).

13. DIVIDENDS
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$’000
R - EREBERBE L Interim — HK1 cent (2007: HK3.8 cents)
(20074 : BHE3.81l) per ordinary share 11,638 44,225
hEE R - S REER Interim special — HK2.8 cents (2007: Nil)
2.8l (20075 : &) per ordinary share 32,587 -
BICRE -SREBER Proposed final — HKO.9 cent
B#0.91l (20074 : (2007: HK5.2 cents)
5. 240) per ordinary share 10,474 60,519
BRAREER - SREER Proposed final special — HK4.3 cents
434l (20075 : #&) (2007: Nil)
per ordinary share 50,045 -
104,744 104,744

IRBERFERPRERRBEIREZER
BHEEARABRRAT —RBHZRRBF K
EEHER . FAUEE -

dividend for the year are subject to the approval of the

The proposed final dividend and the proposed final special

Company'’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
(@)

Basic earnings per share

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on:

Group
58
2008 2007
HK$ HK$
B Earnings
ARGtEERER Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
BRI 2R ARIER of the Company, used in the basic
B ERE AR earnings per share calculation 46,383,000 218,824,000
gy Shares
ARGTESRERBRZE  Weighted average number of ordinary
NEBTEBER shares in issue during the year used in
INREF I8 the basic earnings per share calculation 1,163,828,377 1,163,828,377
(b) BREBERF (b) Diluted earnings per share

B A & £2008%F K2007F38318 1k

FEAMEFEAEE

FEIEN W

I 47 3% 5 B £ 20085 K 20075F3 431
ALEFEE2SRBERAERE -

15. ¥ - MERKXE

Diluted earnings per share amounts for the years ended

31 March 2008 and 2007 have not been disclosed as no
diluting event existed during the years ended 31 March

2008 and 2007.

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

& Group
Leasehold Furniture,
land fixtures and Machinery
and leasehold and Motor
buildings improvements equipment vehicles Total
HELH HH - HER BER
REF HEMERE B AE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
200853A31H 31 March 2008
R2007F4A18 At 1 April 2007:
B Cost 47,274 55,346 102,785 6,708 212,113
BEMERAEE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (25,010) (49,462) (82,829) (4,378) (161,679)
REFE Net carrying amount 22,264 5,884 19,956 2,330 50,434
R200754R18 At 1 April 2007, net of accumulated
MBREFTERRE depreciation and impairment 22,264 5,884 19,956 2,330 50,434
21 Additions - 6,712 615 - 7,327
HE Disposals - (357) (65) - (422)
FRERE Depreciation provided
during the year (2,554) (6,157) (7,460) (668) (16,839)
ERRAE Exchange realignment 1,369 38 - - 1,407
M2008F3A31H At 31 March 2008, net of accumulated
IREHTERAE depreciation and impairment 21,079 6,120 13,046 1,662 41,907
R200853A31H : At 31 March 2008:
B Cost 50,222 58,281 101,739 6,298 216,540
ZERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (29,143) (52,161) (88,693) (4,636) (174,633)
EEFEE Net carrying amount 21,079 6,120 13,046 1,662 41,907
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15. ¥  BERZREE) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

& Group
Leasehold Furniture,
land fixtures and Machinery
and leasehold and Motor
buildings improvements equipment vehicles Total
HELH A KER BER
REF HENEERE B4 RE Eah
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
200738318 31 March 2007
R2006F4A 18 : At 1 April 2006:
A Cost 121,400 71,085 110,438 8,860 311,783
R ERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (59,071) (64,717) (82,877) (6,942) (213,607)
REFE Net carrying amount 62,329 6,368 27,561 1,918 98,176
R200654A 18 At 1 April 2006, net of accumulated
HREFHERAE depreciation and impairment 62,329 6,368 27,561 1,918 98,176
B Additions - 6,195 1,428 1,230 8,853
HE Disposals - (231) (891) (223) (1,345)
FRNERE Depreciation provided
during the year (3,738) (6,472) (8,046) (596) (18,852)
HERR (HE) Reversal of impairment/(impairment) 3,234 - (132) - 3,102
BREEHRA Revaluation surplus upon transfer 23,731 - - - 23,731
ERZRENE Transfer to investment properties (63,819) - - - (63,819)
ERRE Exchange realignment 527 24 36 1 588
R2007%3831H > At 31 March 2007, net of accumulated
NRETHTERBE depreciation and impairment 22,264 5,884 19,956 2,330 50,434
M2007F3A318 : At 31 March 2007:
%S Cost 47,274 55,346 102,785 6,708 212,113
ZMERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (25,010) (49,462) (82,829) (4,378) (161,679)
REFE Net carrying amount 22,264 5,884 19,956 2,330 50,434

MR2008F3A31H  URHERZHEL
it A2 F R AR B #29,747,0007T (2007
& . B ¥26,799,000T ) s EREPEHE
PO AREBMBE A HE50,222,0007T
(2007%F : #B%47,274,000 7T)2HE +1h
REFEP BHREEES I HEES TEER
SR REFZEFELIE  BRES
BEENEI7HR2E > 2HHESENA
HELHWREFZHAR  RAVE - BE
REBHFEzHERE -

Included in the Group’s leasehold land and buildings with a total
cost of HK$50,222,000 (2007: HK$47,274,000) are leasehold
land and buildings situated in Mainland China with an aggregate
cost of HK$29,747,000 (2007: HK$26,799,000) as at 31 March
2008 under medium term leases. As the related prepaid land
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and buildings elements, the entire lease payment is included

in the cost of leasehold land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment in accordance with the provision
of HKAS 17.
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16. REWME 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Group
55
2008
HK$°000
R4 1B ZREE Carrying amount at 1 April
HERAMERTERS Transfer from owner-occupied properties
+ AR S and prepaid land lease payments
AFERARzWE Net gain/(loss) from a fair

17.

(&) F8 (MFE8)

value adjustment (note 8)

Exchange realignment

A3A31 B ZREE

Carrying amount at 31 March

EEzREMEZRUTHARTE -

lease terms:

2008
HK$’000

UREE 2B

R BRI Z RN T
URAFRE Rz REIBATE

Medium term leases in Hong Kong
Medium term leases in Mainland China

Long term leases in Mainland China

2007
HK$’000

35,958

69,448

(2,972)
814

103,248

The Group’s investment properties are held under the following

2007
HK$°000

32,098
41,900
29,250

103,248

EEzREVERBYIEESERGEME
£ {T(Chung, Chan & Associates)?2008
FIABIBRBEREGARZAMMEREES
HAEE EXFGEEEREY124,194,000
e REYEDORKLEREZHERATE=
E HMRBREZEERCEARATBRRME
33(a) °

EBREERENEZE—SHBERNEAER
107K 108E °

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at
HK$124,194,000 as at 31 March 2008 by Chung, Chan &
Associates, independent professionally qualified valuers, on an
open market, existing use basis. The investment properties are
leased to third parties under operating leases arrangements,
further summary details of which are included in note 33(a) to

the financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are

included on page 107 and 108.

AN HEERX 17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
Group
55
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$°000
A4B1BZREE Carrying amount at 1 April 9,799
RERER (KzEs) Recognised during the year (note 8) (690)
HEBEREYE Transfer to investment properties (5,629)
R3A31H ZREE Carrying amount at 31 March 3,480
FAFEARE - FTER Current portion included in prepayments,
H {th fE Uk BR 18 2 BN EAER 5 deposits and other receivables (209)
JEBNERER Non-current portion 3,271
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Notes to Financial Statements

17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS (Continued)

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments are held under the

following lease terms:

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
UREBZREBENYZE Medium term leases in Hong Kong 3,271 3,480
k) 18. GOODWILL
Group
£H
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$°000
RAR1BKR3A31 B ZEAR Cost and net carrying amount at
IRMEFE 1 April and 31 March 35,878 35,878

AERENR
BREBAHEB - HEREILEZTEXEY
REEE SN (B2|EB)ETRENR

TEXEBRSELEU2TRESHEDRR
EREEFEMEE  REAQXFDEEEHR
BEehEHRERERUFE - RERER
AERZTEER.26% °

7A2008F3H31H Kk2007F3H310 T &
(¥BEBESECENCERAEETERBT
FERR - TYHAEEBRBRERETEN
kB2 & EEM|ME - BUETHERER
=

FAHEANFEF -ARENRDREEEFEAN
ZBEFERACEIN 2 PHYERNERK AT
REREE -

FRE-FREDHIGABEZE » W RE
BREMEEZEERR -

BEEKER-FEER LRZREREET
EREFECHEFECHANEBRESR -
ERF2EEENMDENHFEF -2 -

Impairment testing of goodwill
Goodwill acquired through a business combination has been
allocated to the retail operation cash-generating unit, which is a

reportable segment, for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the retail operation cash-generating
unit has been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections approved by the Company’s directors
covering a period of five years. The discount rate applied to cash

flow projections is 9.26%.

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of
the retail operation cash-generating unit for 31 March 2008 and
31 March 2007. The following describes each key assumption
on which management has based its cash flow projections to

undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross
margins achieved in the year immediately before the budget year,

increased for expected efficiency improvements.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and

reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

Purchase price inflation — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to inventory price inflation is the forecast price indices
during the budget year from where inventories are sourced. The
values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with external

information sources.
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19. B D Bl R 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company
AE]

2008 2007

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FLEMBRH - REE Unlisted shares, at cost 193,540 193,540
ARG Amounts due from a subsidiary 660,022 662,204
853,562 855,744

A BNERER Less: Current portion (60,519) (60,519)
JEENHEAER Non-current portion 793,043 795,225

BRT —FEXFRAKRKIZERB RNEE
B & 58 78 #599,503,0007T (20074 © 8 &
601,685,0007t) ' FTIEEKMHMEB AR ZX
FEAEER RETENEREEE - E
WHMEARREZREEELAFEES -

FEEFENBLTERUWT :

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest-

bearing and repayable on demand, except for an amount of
HK$599,503,000 (2007: HK$601,685,000) which is not repayable
within the next twelve months. The carrying amounts of the

amounts due from the subsidiaries approximate to their fair

values.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Nominal value

Place of of issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration registered attributable Principal
Name and operations share capital to the Company activities
B Mg ERTEBERRAS RNE G
=L 5= ik A EAEE BRAEZBE D ETEEK
Direct Indirect
HiE %
Callas Investments Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Property
Limited a8 HK$2 holding
EENREARAT g L/ESEZ ]
B2t
China-Hongkong British Virgin Ordinary - 100 Investment
Photo Retail Islands uss$t holding
Limited* RERLZEE Z8 REZR
HEBRETERRLE 1E7T
C.Y. Sun Holdings British Virgin Ordinary 100 - Investment
Limited* Islands us$10,000 holding
RERLES =8 REEZER
10,0003 7T
Fotomax (F.E.) Ltd. Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Provision of
REIE (BR) AF &8 HK$ 1,000,000 photographic
Zm developing and

F8#51,000,0007T

processing services
and retail of
photographic
merchandise
R R EN AR S
MEEEMEE
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

FEEETEMBARNEHNT : (#)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)

Nominal value

Place of of issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration registered attributable Principal
Name and operations share capital to the Company activities
B Efits ERTEERRA RN E G
=L 5= ik A EAEE RAEZBE DL FEXH
Direct Indirect
BHiE SE
Fuji Photo Products Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Marketing and
Company, Limited a8 HK$10,000,000 distribution of
ETRBEEMERAT Z8 photographic
7% 10,000,0007T developing and
processing products
EEREHERS
RENE M
Great Earnings Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Property holding
Investments Limited a8 HK$2 NERE
BERERRAT £t
B2
Imaging and Information Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Marketing and
Products Trading BB HK$1,000 distribution of
Limited (“IIP”) i@ photographic
FEREMER 71,0007 developing and
BSERAT processing products
HEER LR
SRENE M
Majestic Income Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Property holding
Limited &8 HK$2 LSS
SEARAHE =8
B2
Orderly Mind Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Property holding
Enterprises Limited &8 HK$2 MERT
BHEEARAT g
B2
Palace Glory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Property holding
MERRATE b HK$2 L/ESEZ ]
R
B2
Pride High Company Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Property holding
Limited - HK$2 LIESSEE]
BABRATE R
2T
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)

Nominal value

Place of of issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration registered attributable Principal
Name and operations share capital to the Company activities
R MR ERTEBRRAS R E G
=L IS 3k A EAEE RAERZBT DL TEXEH
Direct Indirect
HiE B
Sky Rich (Asia) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Property holding
AE (M) BRAH &8 HK$2 L/ESEE]
g
B2
Sky Year Resources Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Property holding
Limited S HK$2 LESSEE]
REERERDT 8
BE2TT

UHMBERBZKETMEREIRNZ KRR
BZHEDRARE -

ERAIIDESERREAEBARFERR
FEAFEYHAEEFEETERD2F
DNEMBAR - EBEFRE - M5 HEMK
BRAAZHBEEREANTIR

20. 78
EEFEIEAMEEYBRENRNESR -

21. EWERER ZE

Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member firm of

the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in

the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for

the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the

Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

20. INVENTORIES

The Group’s inventories principally consist of photographic

developing, processing and printing products for resale.

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Group
£8
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
EWARER EiE Trade and bills receivables 140,883 160,005
R Impairment (127,878) (141,404)
13,005 18,601




Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

RS MR

2008 £ 3 A 31 H

21. EWIRER EE (& 21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

FEBHEBE 2R T EURESET
EHEF-—REFZFELAR BEEBEAR
BRBHRIOANGR  BRHRBEETN
RHAERZ1200 - BUEFYUERSRE
BERE THSREEBHELEME A5H
BOBBESREECREERN  URERF
BEEHNMUSEREEERR -SEEE
AEEHRBBBIRA o HRN LAl IR
AEBECERURBEESUTEREFERH 8
WEEREFEERMS

BEMBAFE AT RHUKRRERERRE
REBEREE R ZIRE D

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally 30 days,
except for certain well-established customers where the terms
are extended to 120 days. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit pre-approved by senior management. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has
a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In
view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers,

there is no significant concentration of credit risk.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the
balance sheet date, based on the payment due date and net of

impairment, is as follows:

Group
£E

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
ENERZ= 318 B Current to 3 months 12,721 16,686
4Z6{E R 4 to 6 months 52 808
72918 R 7 to 9 months 66 43
oA Lt Over 9 months 166 1,064
13,005 18,601

BYERER RIERERGZEZBUNT -

The movements in provision for impairment of trade and bills

receivables are as follows:

Group
S5

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$ 000
M4B1H At 1 April 141,404 140,111
EEREER Impairment losses recognised 30 1,293
SIEESEE 2 578 Amount written off as uncollectible (11,719) -
R EE B R 5 Impairment losses reversed (1,837) -
M3A31H At 31 March 127,878 141,404

UEtEWREREZEERERESLEDRRE
M & /& #127,878,0007T (20074 : 4 #&
141,404,000t ) 2 f& Bl FE W BR 1B R R 15 1F
HH Rl (B 3 5 78 % 127,878,0007T (20074 -
7 #141,404,0007T) © %% @ Bl BB R E
ZEBERREE SR BAMBERERELN
REREREF  YHENRAEER—H5
FRHEWRRE AEETERZEEHREE
FEMEFRREMEER -

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade and
bills receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of HK$127,878,000 (2007: HK$141,404,000) with a
carrying amount of HK$127,878,000 (2007: HK$141,404,000).
The individually impaired trade and bills receivables relate to
customers that were in financial difficulties or in default or
delinquency in payments and only a portion of the receivables
is expected to be recovered. The Group does not hold any

collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

o1
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21. BRIRIBER BB (#) 21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)
WRARHEZEBRERZBEZRE DN An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are not
mT considered to be impaired is as follows:
Group
58
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
b B ER SR E Neither past due nor impaired 7,605 9,632
BHORUER Less than 1 month past due 2,669 5,200
BHER SR E 1 month and over 1 month past due 2,731 3,769
13,005 18,601
WHBHLREZERRERZEERER Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
BER2EFAR MKRSOHIBEIRL large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
£ o recent history of default.
EEBERNEEWRERZERS M Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
rEBERHFERCHZBYTFER - R number of independent customers that have a good track record
BERILR  ARAESRABERZESE with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
BELRERE EAEEEZLBERE Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
B MZEERNEERTEZHKE - KD is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
AU ERZEEREEEMEFRKEME a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
BERHA - considered fully recoverable. The Company does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.
22. BAFIR - I RAEMBRRERE 22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
ErE AND RENTAL DEPOSITS
AR zEMERRERAEEZESRK The Company’s other receivables and the Group’s prepayments,
B AeREMEREREREBEREAR deposits and other receivables and rental deposits are non-
B BERAEHEAEATEMES - #SiE Lt interest-bearing and their carrying amounts approximate to
EECONSCRE - ¢RMEE(BFE LT their fair values. None of the above assets is either past due or
BRAEWERIE < 45 68) WM R FRAT 8% © impaired. The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default.
23. EBBEERAVEMAEZSHMEE 23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS
Group
5=
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
BHELTREES Overseas unlisted investment funds,

BAFE at fair value 236,792 -
HRZEEA —ARERERREE R The above investment funds at 31 March 2008 were, upon initial
AFPEEEEBERFIERAZENEEZ recognition, designated by the Group as financial assets as at
D EMBREESRIRERE  R20085F fair value through profit or loss as the assets are part of a group
3A3IBREEED AEBBRE N TEE of financial assets which are managed and their performance
HesREE - evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented

risk management strategy.
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24. RERASEEEE 24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group Company
&8 NE]
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
RERIBITHEER Cash and bank balances 42,520 66,212 599 383
EHFER Time deposits 638,099 899,045 - -
ReRRELHEER Cash and cash equivalents 680,619 965,257 599 383
REER ZREBUARET AR G At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances of
BHSRIBTLHEEE LN EY20,810,0007T the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
(20074 : & #38,686,0007T) ° A R ¥ approximately HK$20,810,000 (2007: HK$38,686,000). The
THEEHERZBEABEMEY . HREFR A RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
ZCONEBEBEPIRCEE - SERNES under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
EHRE) AEEREEBEFETHIESE and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
BRTEBARELBAEHEMEY - Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.
FRBT2HESRBRITEEFRRERIUE Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
EBFE c REAEEHRESERZZ2IHE deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
EHERFRE-BR—FULRE Uy periods of between one day and over one year depending on the
BRI TR 2 B EBAE « RITEBRRE immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
KEEFERYEREERFANRB AL the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged
ZHRIT - WENKRLEEEERRHEHF deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
RZRMEEEQAFERES - history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash
equivalents and long term time deposits approximate to their fair
values.
25. EREREREZE 25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
REBEERRESRE 2B ETE - B An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the balance
BRENEENEER ZRBRONOT - sheet date, based on the date of goods purchased and services
rendered, is as follows:
Group
£H
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$’000
ENERZ= 318 B Current to 3 months 18,697 11,498
3EAUE Over 3 months 2,637 5,111
21,334 16,609
AEECENRERERBEARE  BBEEEA The Group’s trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and
MRI0BHIR A M HIREEE A FEM are normally settled on 30-day terms, and their carrying amounts
ESl approximate to their fair values.

93



RS MR

2008 £ 3 A 31 H

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

26. EstEERAEMENIRER
ARFRAEE A ER A0 RE
ARE  HEREAERAAPEES -

217.

I FE B IR

FREERBEEEREEZBHMOT :

26. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES

The Company’s and Group’s accrued liabilities and other payables

are non-interest-bearing and their carrying amounts approximate

to their fair values.

27. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the

year are as follows:

EEBimas Deferred tax liabilities
Group
%m
Revaluation of Depreciation Losses
property, plant allowance available for
and equipment/ in excess offset against
investment of related future taxable
properties depreciation profits
EftE- BB AR
BEREE/ TEERY RIRFERD Total
REME TERBE il @it
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R200654A 18 At 1 April 2006 - 4,663 (2,575) 2,088
FERREREMR/ (1210) Deferred tax charged/(credited)
ZIEERE (MEE11) to the income statement
during the year (note 11) - (640) 1,119 479
RRARR R 2 BEERIE Deferred tax charged to equity 3,057 - - 3,057
R2007F3A31BR Gross deferred tax liabilities
2007F4A1AR recognised in the consolidated
RREEBERRER balance sheet at 31 March 2007
ZEEHRAEERE and 1 April 2007 3,057 4,023 (1,456) 5,624
EEWE/\\‘EE_&EE?DB@/ ($2m) Deferred tax charged/(credited)
ZEERE (M) to the income statement
during the year (note 11) 6,427 (2,001) 1,004 5,430
R2008F3A31 B Gross deferred tax liabilities
RREEBEREAZ recognised in the consolidated
EEREEELR balance sheet at 31 March 2008 9,484 2,022 (452) 11,054
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

27.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

BEEHEEE Deferred tax assets
Group
&
Depreciation
expense Losses
in excess  Impairment  available for
Provision of related on trade offset against
against  depreciation and bills future taxable
inventories allowance receivables profits Total
BBABRE T
Xk EAEE ARRERH
FERE WEER REBHE &BNER st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
R20065F4A 18 At 1 April 2006 (37) (536) (5,539) (5,608) (11,720)
FRREREENRZ Deferred tax charged
EERE to the income statement
(FizE11) during the year (note 11) 3 415 5,539 166 6,123
R2007%53A318 K Gross deferred tax assets
2007F48 1R recognised in the consolidated
FRERSEREIZ balance sheet at 31 March 2007
EEHREERR and 1 April 2007 (34) (121) - (5,442) (5,597)
ERRBRENR, (20) Deferred tax charged/(credited)
ZIEERE (MzE11) to the income statement
during the year (note 11) 17 (65) - (747) (795)
A2008%F3A31 B Gross deferred tax assets
GREEBEREDL recognised in the consolidated
EEHEEERE balance sheet at 31 March 2008 (17) (186) - (6,189) (6,392)

R2008F3A31B AE@BEE 2K E
B 18 B B ®19,258,0007T(20074F : B
#524,975,0007T ) + BA R A] HOORL E R M =
£ A 8 #141,745,0007T (20074 8 #&
141,745,00070) » Al A B EIRE A U
HIFEEBBORARRZERBEF - AR
EEHEEEDNEE —BRESETHEE
RREERAHMBAREER » BALKRER
ZEBBRUINMBEREMEEZEEAR -

R2008F3A31H mAKEMBEARET
THERZEMREMS  LE/ERRAR
ZIEEREEE(2007F &) BREBLE
ERTEEZSNELERENTFEMIA

AAREERRED 2 FRIEIL EHFRPTEH
B’ER -

At 31 March 2008, the Group had tax losses arising in

Hong Kong of HK$19,258,000 (2007: HK$24,975,000) and
deductible temporary differences of HK$141,745,000 (2007:
HK$141,745,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses and deductible temporary differences as
they have arisen in subsidiaries with uncertain future operating

profit streams.

At 31 March 2008, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2007: Nil) for taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries
as the Group has no liability to additional tax should such

amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment

of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

95



96

RS MR

2008 £ 3 A 31 H

28.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

;&S 28. SHARE CAPITAL
N Shares
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$’000
EE Authorised:
& 3E f% 2,000,000,0000% 2,000,000,000
(20074 : 2,000,000,0000%) (2007: 2,000,000,000)
EREEBY —A ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 200,000 200,000
EETRAE Issued and fully paid:
EiEIR1,163,828,3778% 1,163,828,377
(2007 : 1,163,828,377/%) (2007: 1,163,828,377)
EREEBY —A ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 116,383 116,383
B Share options

ARATRBRETE HFRRNUBHRRME
29 e

BRETE
ARBRRBRMBRE Y AEBEEBERIME
HERZEERSEEMRLBRESTS -

ERATN2002E8A30E T RRBAFERSY
b ARTARRBB-EETBERER UK
MBRBEET 2 LT RAUEI7TEREZH
BRESTE(THEED » URKLERQATR
1994F8A3 1 B Mz EBRE ([ &5t
2 B8R AARFESBERIER
HAEAIERE  ERET R ILATRE 2
ERREEEESNR  LAREESEGKIT
LATTfE ©

B zAERSHE  BREALAZES
(BEBYFHTES)  FAEEHMES -
FEEERRBRBEUED AREEF K
SESAREZQT - FARAREBEIRE A
T RBYFEMRMITNREST  FH
AER -KKE  AEH  2BERE
R AHAKREEAREARMBITZES
ZEAA -

FARBEFE  WEREFTIRHER
& o st BIA20025E8H30E % » MERIEH
RSN BABEZBRIOERNASE
o

29.

Details of the Company’s share option schemes are included in

note 29 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who

contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

In the Company’s annual general meeting held on 30 August
2002, an ordinary resolution was passed by the Company’s
shareholders for the adoption of a new share option scheme
(the “New Scheme”) in compliance with the amended Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules and the termination of the Company’s
old share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”) adopted on 31
August 1994. Upon termination of the Old Scheme, no further
options can be granted thereunder but all options granted prior
to such termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in

accordance with the provisions of the Old Scheme.

Eligible participants of the New Scheme include the Company’s
directors, including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group, suppliers of goods and services to
the Group, customers of the Group, any entity in which the
Group holds any equity interest, any agent, advisor, consultant,
strategist, contractor, subcontractor or expert that provides
research, development or other technological support to the
Group or any holder of any securities issued by any member of

the Group.

In the current and prior years, no share options were granted
under the New Scheme. The New Scheme became effective on
30 August 2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,

will remain in force for 10 years from that date.
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29. BRRESHEI (&) 29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

BEFHE BRENREMERTEZE
S EBRETIIEN2002568 308 1T
EARDBTRE BT 10%  A2007F K
2008F3A31H  WERNEFERFTET
MARITE B - MMEM12E A R
BREFHAESEERSHEEZBRET
TROZESHEHRRAARAERFS BT
BRAD 2 1% o EIPRFI 2 /MR LR EEER
RAELESREMAE -

BAQAREES THABSETERRSEE
EoAMBBATIRETFERE  BREES
BUFHITESBAE - I HMREMI2
BARFARADETERRABILFERITES
BHEECEMBHEBA T ZCEREBERAR
ATEHEBTRMAZ0.1%RAE(RBEREH
BRESAXRDARGERTE) BEBY
5,000,000t * AIZEEEERRAS LES
BRER LA o

REBRECENTRENO AL 28AR
B  EMBREZVRAISNREEEL
T CRHBREZTEHHESEE B
ETHEBHERBITRNEREZN R MBS
TERM0F 2 REER FERRAL -

BREZTEELRESEE  EFESIRU
T=F2BEE : WA 2ARONEHLRE
AM(XERRSRAEEBBHERZNER
REN(BRA D) ZWHE: (HVBREZORN
RMATSERS BADQ ARG REB R ZF
HRHE S RGNAXFARGEE -

BRELTEFHEAZEREINRBRA
BLERRZEN -

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the New Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at 30 August 2002. At 31 March 2007 and
2008, there were no outstanding share options granted under
either the Old Scheme or the New Scheme. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the New Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject

to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date

of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general

meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28
days from the date of offer. A consideration of HK$1 is payable
on acceptance of the offer of a grant of an option. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and ends
on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of offer

of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share
options, which must be a trading date; (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the

nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or

to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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30. f#1E

31

(@ 5H

FEERBURRAFRBEAFEZE
B BRUBERRFAIECGEERE

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

30. RESERVES
(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

Bk o consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 47 of
the financial statements.
(b) 2T (b) Company
Share Capital
premium redemption  Contributed Retained
Notes account reserve surplus profits Total
HizE RIGEER EXEOGRE EfMRR RBEF @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
42006544 1A At 1 April 2006 478,773 1,619 193,340 294 674,026
EEEA Profit for the year 12 - - - 106,213 106,213
2007 FHRE 2007 Interim dividend 13 - - - (44,225) (44,225)
2007FRRRERE 2007 Proposed final dividend 13 - - - (60,519) (60,519)
1200734318 At 31 March 2007 and
R2007%451H 1 April 2007 478,773 1,619 193,340 1,763 675,495
ERRA Profit for the year 12 - - - 103,354 103,354
2008FHHRE 2008 Interim dividend 13 - - - (11,638) (11,638)
2008F FHHRIRE 2008 Interim special dividend 13 - - - (32,587) (32,587)
2008F KR ERE 2008 Proposed final dividend 13 - - - (10,474) (10,474)
2008F ERAHBRIRE 2008 Proposed final
special dividend 13 - - - (50,045) (50,045)
42008534318 At 31 March 2008 478,773 1,619 193,340 373 674,105

ARBzERBRBRAREHRBLRARN 2
DNVPEBBEADRAMLFLHRBEMETZR
DZIREEZED - RETFEI981IF L
E(RER)  —BRARTRETERTAER
BRBOERRELDIK -

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess of

the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired over

the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), a company may make distributions to its members out

of the contributed surplus in certain circumstances.

SERERBERMEE 31. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$’000
MN3IABHGREEE Cash and cash equivalents for the
EERZRERES purpose of the consolidated balance
Z£ERE (FIFE24) sheet as at 31 March (note 24) 680,619 965,257
REBARRIEA Non-pledged time deposits with original
HiB=1EA maturity of more than three months
ZEEREREFN when acquired (313,179) (628,569)
MN3A31AGZEERS Cash and cash equivalents for the
REBRZRHER purpose of the consolidated cash flow
REEEER statement as at 31 March 367,440 336,688
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

32. FREE 32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(a) MEER RUBBRABHEZIAE (a) At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided
BT : for in the financial statements were as follows:
Group Company
&8 NG
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
) fff 22 | Guarantees given to
FrEESRIT banks in connection
FEFLHER with facilities granted
to subsidiaries - - 636,000 714,000
AATHRMEB AR FAERITEEME Out of the HK$636,000,000 (2007: HK$714,000,000)
i & #636,000,0007T (20074 : ¥ corporate guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities
714,000,0007C) Z &R HPENE granted to subsidiaries by the Company, bills payable
EEHBM12,868,0007T (20076 & B totalling HK$ 12,868,000 (2007: HK$7,880,000) were utilised
#57,880,000t ) REHHCEH B L by the subsidiaries at the balance sheet date.
ARA
(b) REFERAEE BEBROAEBEH (b) In prior and the current years, the Inland Revenue

HHEAGEH NI EBRBRLAEES
FT2EMBLARNBASFHEEZBE
/&5 18 78 %232,000,0007T (2007 F : &
#£221,000,0007T ) ° AEBEB E W E
FRERUZRHELHESEER &
ERRAEEERANERAISAER
WG  HREERABEMGTEZESR
HERBE » MUNR2008FE3A31B RS
1EHBE -

33. REMOZH

(a)

HAEA
AEERBLERNZHEEEREY
£ (TBmEMT16)  KBEFI RS
B1ESFE(2007%F : 1E5F) - MK
RA—REEHFEXNRERBEE
BTN E R ARES -

Department issued various enquiry letters to the Group in
relation to the setting off of tax losses of HK$232,000,000
(2007: HK$221,000,000) which were carried forward by
certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group in prior
years. The Group is now gathering relevant information to
support the setting off of the tax losses, and the directors
are of the opinion that there is adequate evidence to
support the Group’s position. As the directors considered
that it is premature to draw a conclusion on the possible
outcome of the enquiry, no provision was made as of 31
March 2008.

33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 16 to the
financial statements) under operating lease arrangements,
with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one to five
years (2007: one to five years). The terms of the leases
generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits
and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the

then prevailing market conditions.
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33. KREMANZH (&

(a)

(b)

HEA ()

M2008F3A31H  KNEEBEHEFET
32 R R EH 48 RE A0 T AT R SR SR UK ER
ZEREESBEBNBRWT ¢

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

As lessor (Continued)
At 31 March 2008, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases

with its tenants falling due as follows:

Group
58
2008 2007
HK$ 000 HK$’000
1R Within one year 4,785 3,809
225F (BEER2F) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 4,662 6,378
9,447 10,187
ABEA (b) As lessee

AEEREERNZHARE TESEN
TYE WEAHEEETEABIES
F(2007F  1E3F) »

2008F3A31 8 » NEEF T A HE
ZREROMBARARIF 2 RERS
MERTEAMT ¢

The Group leases certain of its retail outlets under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for retail outlets are negotiated
for terms ranging from one to three years (2007: one to

three years).

At 31 March 2008, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

falling due as follows:

Group
el
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
1ER Within one year 27,947 26,999
2B5F (BRFERE2EF) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 20,058 21,943
48,005 48,942

REER AN EBTAELLEHER
HE(20075F : &) o

3. BEAETRS

(a)

BAKRE -FTeRAMEREER—
EHEARLHEREZRAREGHBE
5,996,0007T (20074 : # #5,996,000
) BRERKF REREETER
H o

REBCZIEEEAERAQNTES
EEMEe2E—SHBHNMBRERM
F9 o

The Company did not have any operating lease

arrangements as at the balance sheet date (2007: Nil).

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

(b)

Included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables is
an amount due from a minority shareholder of a subsidiary
totalling HK$5,996,000 (2007: HK$5,996,000) which is
unsecured, non-interest-bearing and has no specific terms of

repayment.

The Group’s key management personnel are the directors of
the Company. Further details of directors’ remuneration are

included in note 9 to the financial statements.



RS MR

2008 &£ 3 A 31 H
35. LR 2&R T A
SHESHMITENGEERZE

2008

Financial assets

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

HEWDT :

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the balance sheet dates are as follows:

TREE
Group
£
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit or
loss — designated
as such upon Loans and
initial recognition receivables Total
REDREER
#BEADHBEBER
RAFEHEZEMER HRREWRA @it
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FEUWERER ZE Trade and bills receivables - 13,005 13,005
&Rk HE M ERERE Deposits and other receivables - 15,101 15,101
BEREREATFEFE  Financial assets at fair value
ZEREE through profit or loss 236,792 - 236,792
RekBELEEEE Cash and cash equivalents - 680,619 680,619
236,792 708,725 945,517
Financial liabilities
cRAaRE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
LA S AN A BR
ZERBE
HK$’000
ENREREE Trade and bills payables 21,334
Hib e ERIE Other payables 37,089
58,423
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

35. NERIE s 2e @I A E) 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Continued)
ZEERMIANEEAZREBNT : (A) The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the balance sheet dates are as follows:
(Continued)
2007
Financial assets
ctHEE
Group
&8
Loans and
receivables
ERREWERE
HK$’000
EWERER EiE Trade and bills receivables 18,601
ek EAmEWRE Deposits and other receivables 22,109
ReRRELEHEER Cash and cash equivalents 965,257
1,005,967
Financial liabilities
EA =N
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
LU 88 AR A BR
ZEREE
HK$’000
FERIRIER EE Trade and bills payables 16,609
HihpETER1E Other payables 37,618
54,227
Financial assets — Loans and receivables
SREE—BNRERKRE
Company
AT
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEUSRT B 2 Bl R K Due from a subsidiary 60,519 60,519
Hth fE U BRIE Other receivables 6 6
ReRELEEEE Cash and cash equivalents 599 383
61,124 60,908
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35. LRI 2RI A7

36

FESRIARNSHER ZREENT « (#)

TREE—UBERAARZEREE

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the balance sheet dates are as follows:
(Continued)

Financial liabilities — Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Company
AT
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
HihpE(SERIE Other payables 15 15
PERABREBEEERBE 36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

AEEZFTELRTEAGERERBITER
REBER -ZZEWMIAZTZENRA
FEEXBLESEES - AEEEEZE
HtheMEERAE  fINBEIRERRE
URENMREREE  YEEHBEXKE
* o

FEEESRMIAMEY 2 TZABAFERE

ﬁﬂ. 2R m@]é%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ$ﬁ$§ﬂ
CEZERTRAZEESEABRZEK
o WIMMT -

F = & B
AEBERES 2 HEFRSEER T EER
EERTHESBIBEM2AEBAETE - A&
BeREELEETEUBTRERIE-
FEERENERURHUANREZECRE
RERNZMEEERZER -

fifi FI R 52 5.0.5%m E b 7] W Z IS A2

o KR TS & I8 B % 3,000,000
(2007% : #8%4,000,0007T) * LTI
RABWAEMAE ; &

o JRZNHE R 42 FE A% 15 In B 3,000,000
(20074 : 8%4,000,0007T) * LT3
RF B U AT ©

fisl R R &K 0. 5% M A TR ERAEF AL

o KREEGEAEERED B3 000,0005T
(20074 : #8%4,000,0007T) * LTI
RABWARDEIE &

o RAMERMBEAER D BE3,000,0005T
(20074 : 8%4,000,0007T) * LT3
RABWARD TRk »

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
bank balances and time deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such

as trade and bills receivables and trade and bills payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk.
The board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the interest income received on the
Group’s bank balances. The Group’s interest-generating assets
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar and United States
dollar. The Group manages its interest rate risk by regularly
monitoring the macro-economic factors that may impact on the
interest rates.

If the interest rates have been 0.5% higher while all other
variables are held constant:

e  profit for the year would increase by HK$3,000,000 (2007:
HK$4,000,000) due to increase in interest income; and

® total equity would increase by HK$3,000,000 (2007:
HK$4,000,000) due to increase in interest income.

If the interest rates have been 0.5% lower while all other
variables are held constant:

e  profit for the year would decrease by HK$3,000,000 (2007:
HK$4,000,000) due to decrease in interest income; and

® total equity would decrease by HK$3,000,000 (2007:
HK$4,000,000) due to decrease in interest income.
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FEBREHOBRRAREEAZEZAX
5 AEERERERMERAEER
SZREFETERELEN - Zi - A&H
ERAERREFURLS  EERAEERER
ZRREABAFEN - AEEFEERRZ

HEERMEmERME2 -

FEEHMGEREE(ZZEERRESRAS
ZERE - EMERRENSTE
fEEWERIR) < EE R - TIRBHF T8
FEZHKIE  MEKXEBERE

& °

HRAEBERSHEATREERFZE=S

BRI BARMERR -

FEESFAEESBRIBERE  AHDH
BREAFZMZRSREEMRR - FELUR

ERBESER -

FEERNEERARENFERATIHZERE

BZEHBEROT

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy

third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who

wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on

an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. Details of the Group’s credit policy are set out in note

21 to the financial statements.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents, time deposits, and
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, arises from default
of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to the

carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy

third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Liquidity risk
The Group consistently maintains a prudent financing policy and
strives to ensure that it maintains sufficient cash and credit lines

to meet its liquidity requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
balance sheet date, based on the contracted undiscounted

payments, was as follows:

On Less than 3 3to 12

31 March 2008 demand months months 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total
#2008F3431H REXEE LPH3MER  3Z12(8A 1B5%F fichiokt:a @t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EREREE Trade and bills payables 3,714 17,620 - - - 21,334
HitEiRE 8,116 28,973 - - - 37,089
11,830 46,593 - - - 58,423

On Less than 3 3to 12

31 March 2007 demand months months 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total
®2007%3A31H BREREE HW3ER  3Z1208A 1255 HBB5E st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

ENREREE Trade and bills payables 2,784 13,825 - - - 16,609
HitEdiRE 6,210 31,408 - - - 37,618
8,994 45,233 - - - 54,227
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36. M RAREEBERBR (& 36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

% 2 {8 4% LB
AEEEH 2 RAERRBESASESEZ
BRESRATVENEZEREERH - &
EEEBOMREEG UNESERAER -
REASEERER2RERR - 2BRE
HECKTN -

fisl B B AR 1R S 5% H fth o] # H E #3351
=

o  REE GRS EIEMEU12,000,000
JT(2007F : &) > LTI HRBEBED
BRAFEFEZEREE 2 WL AT
¥R

e RARERBALEHE S MBY
12,000,0007T (20074 : &) > T3 H
REBEZRATEISEZEREREZ
WS IB AT R ©

fisl R A B & B K500 H A 7 # B ZEHFT

=% .
%

o REEBANBEMDEY12,000,000
JL(2007% : ) WA RBEBES
BRAFESFEZEREE 2 W B AT
R

e BAREZBLBEERLBY
12,000,0007T (20074 : &) » LTI EH
REBEZRATEFEZSREEZ
W R A PR o

BEXER
FEBEAEECTRERARELAEEN
SERENABHELEURERREZER
R UXBHEERRRESRREE -

AEFBRELSERRMERLEREBIUR
HUAFEH A% o AR E AL TR @ IR RIR R
ZRE - MBRRRBERGBEITHRMD U
BFRARERLERE - BIE2008F3831AK
2007F3A31BLFE  BEEBEZ - XD
BFILEEE -

POLICIES (Continued)

Equity price risk

The Group’s main equity price risk exposures relate to the
Group’s holdings of financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss. The Group controls its equity price risk through
diversification of the portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is
done in accordance with approved limits which are regularly

reviewed by the Group.

If the equity prices have been 5% higher while all other variables

are held constant:

e  profit for the year would increase by HK$12,000,000 (2007:
Nil) due to increase in gains on financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss; and

e total equity would increase by HK$12,000,000 (2007: Nil)
due to increase in gains on financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss.

If the equity prices have been 5% lower while all other variables

are held constant:

e  profit for the year would decrease by HK$12,000,000 (2007:
Nil) due to decrease in gains on financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss; and

e total equity would decrease by HK$12,000,000 (2007: Nil)
due to decrease in gains on financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business

and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes during the years ended 31 March 2008 and 31 March
2007.
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36.

37.

38.

BHEREREEBRRBEE @)

EXREE(E)
AEBFARES LR (BRBEERUR

EEEER100%  RBEEBEFE - BW
RIEREE - AARE - T2 R AMERR
B ERBASRAVEMAEZEREE T
WERERRERBEEEMERE - RBAEE
BREENRERRE  EFEEREMEN
BRIE ©

36.

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2008

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is current
assets divided by current liabilities. The Group’s policy is to keep
the current ratio above 100%. Current assets include inventories,
trade and bills receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
tax recoverable and cash and cash equivalents. Current liabilities
include trade and bills payables, accrued liabilities and other

payables.

2008 2007

HK$’000 HK$’000

REVEEAE Total current assets 977,046 1,033,704

FREaERE Total current liabilities (85,653) (104,929)

RBEEFEE Net current assets 891,393 928,775

e = Current ratio 1,141% 985%
hBEF 37. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

A B MEMASTNE  ARAFED
FEMZINHFAEMEE  HETHEHAFU
B UFERFEE2HARN

#ef B I R &
EEEN2008FcH26 At ER BRERITI
BEEHREK o

38.

As further explained in note 5 to the financial statements, due to
the change in the presentation of segment information during the
year, certain comparative amounts have been restated to conform

with the current year’s presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 26 June 2008.
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Details of Investment Properties

31 March 2008

Location Category of lease Existing use
nE HAOER REAR
) Unit D on the 1st Floor and Medium term leasehold Warehouse
FUBEATHY Car Park Space Nos. 16 FRERFR A =4~}
HEEE215% and 17 on the Ground Floor
RETERE1EDEN and Car Park Space No. 10
T EEMI6R17HR on the Lower Ground Floor
# TMEEFE L1057 Eldex Industrial Building

21 Ma Tau Wai Road

Hunghom

Kowloon

Hong Kong
HEARLHNE Nos. 1 and 2 Factory Medium term leasehold Factory
EXRE 119, Ji Dai Shi Hua West Road HERTE A BE
¥iEgm Zhuhai City
ERAEAE 1195 Guangdong Province
F-HERE-RE People’s Republic of China
HEARLNE 8th Level, Donghai Commercial Centre Medium term leasehold Commercial
L 588 Yan An East Road REEL [GES
EHE Huang Pu District
- R REK5885% Shanghai
REEEPL8E People’s Republic of China
i Units 2301, 2303, 2305 and 2307 Medium term leasehold Commercial
MR on 23rd Floor, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre HERAE A (S
B+ HiBE220-2485 Nos. 220-248 Texaco Road
EEIEHL23E New Territories
2301 » 2303 © 2305/ 2307% Hong Kong
i Units 2109-2116 on 21st Floor Medium term leasehold Commercial
MR Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre FREIFE A [SES
B HiBE220-2485 Nos. 220-248 Texaco Road
SETEPL21 New Territories
2109-2116% Hong Kong
&8 Units No. 6 on 6th Floor together with Medium term leasehold Commercial

B Vehicle Parking Spaces Nos. 37, 51 and 60 HERAE A (S

BB 7R on Ground Floor, Block C
SEIXAEMER Ko Fai Industrial Building

CREith T EHER{{E 0 358837 -
51 %605

No. 7 Ko Fai Road
Kowloon

Hong Kong
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Details of Investment Properties (Continued)

31 March 2008

Location Category of lease Existing use
uE HHER REEAR
) Units 2509, 2511-16 Medium term leasehold Commercial
MR on 25th Floor and Vehicle Parking FRERFR A [GES
BT HIE220-2485 Space No. 23 on 1st Floor
FETEHL25E Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre
2509 > 2511-16E R Nos. 220-248 Texaco Road
EBHEHRE235 New Territories

Hong Kong
HEARLHE Whole of 27th Level and Long term leasehold Commercial
ERAE Car Parking Space Nos. 37, 38 and 39 REAEN [ES
BEM Guang Fa Bank Building
RILEERHT B No.83 Lower Long Lin Road
SIMEREHMAE Dongshan District
21BE2EBRERFARGET Guangzhou
381393k Guangdong Province

People’s Republic of China
hEARLNE Units 1401-1408 on 14th Level Medium term leasehold Commercial
= Jin Cheng Zhong Xin HERR A (S
FEFHE 4th District, Fang Qun Garden
EME Fang Zhuang District
SHEPL Beijing
14#£1401-1408Z People’s Republic of China
hE ARLFNE Unit C on Level 20 and Long term leasehold Commercial
Sl Car Parking Space No. 32 REEL [EES
PEE Regent Court
EEIPINARH No. 4 San Kuai Ban
KERE =54 Yong An Dong Li
EBR Jian Guo Men Wai Da Jie
201ECEf Chao Yang District
REHEARE325 Beijing

People’s Republic of China
PEARAENER Unit No.4 on Levels 17/18 together with Long term leasehold Commercial
L& Car Parking Space No. 10 on 1/F REAY [EES
RER Golden Bridge Mansion
L FER20775% 2077 Yan An Road West
SRRKRE Changning District
17/181AE K Shanghai

EERE AR 105

People’s Republic of China



Corporate Information

NEER

EEg
BRfm(EE)

BiTES
REEF
EESEN
EPE R

BIFRTES
B

FRE

20

=M

LFHE
REE

FERT

MERIT(BHB)BRAF
HE TRERT (M) BRAF

=ZRZAUFRAT

B8 EBESRTERAR

HREm
R AN BT T

12 ]
ZXKEET A=A

EMREE
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12

Bermuda

FEETIENER
BBEE
ELHiBE220-2485
EETERL8E

FERMBFERLE

Butterfield Fund Services
(Bermuda) Limited

Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke, HMO0O8, Bermuda

FEHRBFRBNENE
SERERERATF
EBET

SR REBR28%
SIEE PO 2612

Board of Directors

Sun Tai Lun Dennis (Chairman)

Executive Directors
Ng Yuk Wah Eileen

Sun Tao Hung Stanley
Tang Kwok Tong Simon

Independent Non-executive Directors
Au Man Chung Malcolm

Li Ka Fai David

Liu Hui Allan

Wong Chi Yun Allan

Company Secretary
Chan Wai Kwan Rita

Principal Bankers

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Solicitors

Gallant Y. T. Ho & Co.

Auditors
Ernst & Young

Registered Office
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12

Bermuda

Principal Office in Hong Kong

8th Floor Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre
220-248 Texaco Road

Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Butterfield Fund Services
(Bermuda) Limited

Rosebank Centre
11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke, HMO08, Bermuda

Hong Kong Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Tricor Tengis Limited

26th Floor Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong



ihkoho

CHINA-HONGHONG PHOTO PRODUCTS HOLDINGS LIMITED
TEREBTVEEBERQF

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(REFEZMERLZERAT)



	Cover
	Corporate Profile
	Contents
	Financial Highlights
	Chairman’s Statement
	Operations Review
	Executive Directors’ Information
	Independent Non-executive Directors’ Information
	Corporate Governance Report
	Risk Management
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditors’ Report
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Balance Sheet
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
	Balance Sheet
	Notes to Financial Statements
	Details of Investment Properties
	Corporate Information
	Back Cover

